HINDUSTAN AUTO FINANCE LIMITED

Regd. Add.; Cabin No. DA-8, 2* Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, New Delhi - 110082
E-Mail: hindaf1980@gmail.com, CIN: L659100L1980PLC0O10617

Website: www.hindal.in

Date: 02.09.2024

To,

The Manager-Listing,

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
Agastya Corporate Park, Building A,

Unit 2054, 2nd Floar, Piramal,

Lal Bahadur Shastri Rd, Kurla West,
Mumbal, Maharashitra 400070.

Symbol: HINDAUTO
Sub: Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24

Ref: Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 '

Dear SirMadam,

We hereby inform you that the 44" Annual General Meeting ("AGM') of the Company will be
held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 11:00 am. at the registered office of the Company
situated at Cabin No. DA-8, 2nd Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, New Delhi- 110082,

Please find enclosed herewith Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24
along with the Notice of 44" AGM which is being sent through electronic mode to all the
member of the Company whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent/ Deposilory Participant(s) in compliance with relevant circulars
ssued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Securities and Exchange Board of Indja.

The Annual report for the financial year 2023-24 along with the Notice of AGM s availabie on
fhe website of the Company at www hindaf.in,

This is submitted pursuant to Ragu_laﬁﬁnia'.qﬂ:g{ﬁq:ggm Mﬂnﬂﬂwww
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, i ;

This is for your information and records.

Thanking You,

yash Sap
(Managing Difegtol
DIN:00241940



M/s HINDUSTAN AUTO
FINANCE LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT

FY-2023-24



CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Subhash Sapra Manamng Director

Mrs. Neera Sapra Director & Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Man Singh Tosara Independent Director

Mr. Sudhir Jain Independent Director

Mr. Sumat Bansal Independent Dhrector

Mr. Paritosh Kumar Banszal Independent Director (Upto 30.06.2023)

EKEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Subhash Sapra Managing Director
MNeera Sapra Chief Financial Officer
Rishabh Aggarwal Company Secretary

STATUTORY AUDITOR

Luthra & Associates,

Chartered Accountants

E-14, Lajpat Nagar-3, New Dellu-110024

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

M/s Anju Bansal & Associates,

Company Secratanes

B-299. Ganga Sagar, Ganga Nagar, Meerut,
Uttar Pradesh-230001

INTERNAL AUDITOR

M/s Ankst Satya & Asszociates;
Chartered Accountants ((FRIN:023250C)
D-88. Sector-30. Noida-201303

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Beetal Financial and Computer Services Private Limited
Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, Behind, Local Shopping Centre,
Near Dada. Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi- 110062

REGISTERED OFFICE




Cabin No. DA-8. ?nd Floor, Vikas Marg

Shakarpur, New Delht 1100092,

SHARES LISTED AT:

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India

BANKERS TO THE COMPANY

Bank of Baroda. Ganga Nagar, Meerut

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Sumit Bansal

Mr. Sudhir Jain

Mr. Man Singh Tosaria
Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal

Chairman
Member
Member

Member (Upto 30.06.2023)

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Sumait Bansal

Mr. Sudhir Jain

Mr. Man Singh Tosaria
Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal

Chairman

Member

Member

Member (Upto 30.06.2023)

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

M. Sumat Bansal

Mr. Sodhir Jamn

Mr. Man Singh Tosara
Mr. Parttosh Kumar Bansal

WEBSITE
www hindafin

CONTACT DETAILS
hindaf1980@ gmail com

Chatrman

Member

Member

Member (Upto 30.06.2023)



TABLE OF CONTENT

SNo. | Content Page No.
1 Notice 5-13
2. Board’s Report 16-40
3. Management Discussion & Analysis Report 41-43
4. Chief Financial Officer Certification 46
3 ‘Comphance with Code of Conduct 47
6. Independent Auditor’s Report 48-36
T Balance Sheet 37
8. Profit & Loss Statement 38
9. Cash Flow Statement 39
10. Notes to Financial Statements 60-78
il. Proxy Form T9-80
12. Ballot Paper gl
13. Attendance Slip B2
14 Green Inmtiative Form/E-mail Updating Form 83
15, Route Map 84




HINDUSTAN AUTO FINANCE LIMITED

Regd. Add.: Cabin No. DA-8, 2" Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, New Delhi - 110092
E-Mail: hindaf1280@gmail.com, CIN: L65910DL1980PLC010617
Website: www.hindaf.in

ba

NOTICE

NOTICE 1s hereby given that the 44 Annual General Meeting of the members of M/s Hindustan
Auto Finance Limited will be held on Monday. 30® Dav of September. 2024 at 11:00 am. at the
registered office of the Company at Cabin No. DA-B, ?nd Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, New Delhi,
110092 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial

vear ended on 31st March, 2024 together with the reports of the Auditors” and Directors’ thereon
and in this regard. to consider and if thought fit. to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to the provision of Section 129, 134 and other applicable provision,
if any, of Companies Act. 2013, Audited Financial Statement for the Financial Year 2023-24
comprising of Balance Sheet of the company as on 315t March 2024, Profit & loss Account and Cash
Flow Statement for the period ended on the said date alongz with all annexures attached thereto as
mitialled by the Chairman for identification purpose be and are hereby considered and approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Subhash Sapra (DIN: 00241940}, Managing Director. and
Company Secretary of the company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, matter
deeds and things as mayv be necessary or desirable 1in connection with or incidental to give effect to
the above resolution, mncluding but not limited to filling of necessary forms or returns with the
relevant statutory bodies, and to company with all other requirement 1n this regard”™

To appoint Mrs. Neera Sapra (DIN: 00241941), Durector & CFO who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for reappointment and m this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass
with or without modification(s). the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution-

“RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to the provision of Compames Act, 2013 and other apphcable
provision, if any, the appomtment of Mrzs. Neera Sapra as the director of the company, who retires
by rotations, 1s hereby considered and approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Subhash Sapra (DIN: 00241940), Managing Director. and
Company Secretary of the company be and are hereby severally authorized to doall such acts, matter
deeds and things as may be necessary or desirable 1n connection with or incidental to give effecito
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the above resolution. including but not limited to filling of necessary forms or returmns with the
relevant statotory bodies, and to company with all other requirement 1n this regard™

To appoint M/s B. B. Chaudhary & Co. as Statutory Auditors of the Company and mn this regard. to

consider and if thought fit. to pass with or without modification(s). the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act. 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time bemng in force) and pursvant to the
recommendations of the Audit Commattee, M/s B. B. Chaudhary & Co., Chartered Accountants
having Firm Registration No. 001784N be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a term of five vears, from the conclusion of the 44th Annual General Mesting t1ll the
conclusion of the 49th Annual General Meeting to be held 1n yvear 2029, to examine and audit the
accounts of the Company at such remuneration plus applicable taxes as may be decidad by the Board
of Directors/Audit Committee 1n consultation with the Statutory Auditors of the Company ™

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/-
Subhash Sapra

(Managing Director)
Date: 02.09.2024 DIN:00241940

Place: New Delhi
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NOTES:

. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Compamies Act. 2013, relating to the Special

Business(es), if any, to be transacted at the Meeting s annexed hereto.

A MEMBER WHO IS ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL ONLY AND A
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. IN ORDER TO BE
EFFECTIVE, PROXY FORMS DULY COMPLETED IN ALL RESPECTS SHOULD BE
DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48
HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE MEETING.A PERSON CAN ACT AS A
PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING IN
AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE
THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY
CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND
SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON(S) OR
SHAREHOLDER(S).

Corporate Members mtending to send thewr authorized representative to attend the Meetung are
requested to send a certified tue copy of the Board Resolution authonzing their representative to
attend and vote on their behalf at the Meesting.

Relevant documents as referred to 1n the accompanying Notice along with the Statements are open
for inspection by members at registered office of the Company on all working davs. except
Saturdavs, dunng business hours up to the date of the Annual General Meeting

Bnef detatls of Directors secking appointment/re-appoimntment at the Annual General Meeting along
with details of their other directorship. sharsholding 1n the Company, expertise in specific functional
area pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2013 and Secretanial Standard on General Meeting (85-2) 1ssued by ICSI forms part of
this notice and 1= annexed hersto as Annexure-1

- Members who have not registerad their email address so far are requested to remster thewr email for

recetving all communication mncluding Annual Report, Notices and Circulars etc. from Company
electromically. Members can do this by updating their email addresses with thewr deposttorv
participants.

Members may note that Notice of 44® Annual General Meeting and Annual Report will also be
available on the website of the Company’ s website www hindaf in for their download.
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10.

11.

13.

14

16.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to
dematenialized form as required under the amended SEBI guidelines and regulations to elimnnate all
risks associated with physical shares and for ease 1n portfolio management. Members mayv contact
the Companyv or 1ts Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA), for assistance 1n this regard.

The members who are holding shares in phyvsical form are requested to intimate any change in their
address with pin code immediately erther to the Company or to its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
(RTA) promptly.

The members who are holding shares 1n demat form are requested to intimate any change 1n their
address with pin code immediately to their Depository Participants.

The Notice of AGM and along with Annual Reports 2023-24 15 being sent through e-mail. Members
mayv note this Notice and the Annual Report 2023-24 wall also be available on the Company’s
website viz. wyww hindaf in_

The Register of Directors and Key Managenial Personnel and their Shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Companies Act. 2013 will be available for inspection by the member at the Annual
General Meeting.

. The Register of Directors of Arrangements in which Directors are interested, mamntained under

Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for mspection by the members at the
Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Section 91 of the Compantes Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members and Share
Transfer Books will remain closed from Tuesday. September 24, 2024 to Monday, September 30,
2024 (both davs inclusove)

Voung rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up wvalue of shares registered 1in the name of
member benaficial owner as on cut-off date 1.e. Monday, 23™ September 2024,

. The Board of Directors of the company has appointed Mrs. Amju Bansal, Company Secretanies (C.

P No. 17394), as Scrutimzer for conducting the voting process for the Annual General Mestingina
fair and transparent manner.

The Scnminizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting ar AGM_ first count the votes cast
duning the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast during AGM and make not later than 48 hours of
conclusion of AGM a “Scrutimizer s Report” of the total votes cast 1n favour or against_1f any, to the
chairman or a person authornized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same. Subject to receipt
of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the Annual
General Meeting.
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. The results declared along with the scrutimzer's report shall be forwarded to Metropolitan Stock
Exchange of India Lumited within 48 hours of the conclusion of Annual General Meeting and shall
be uploaded on the website of the Company

No gifis, gift coupons, or cash in lien of gifts shall be distributed to members at or in connection
with the general mesting.

19 The Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated the submission of Permanent Account

Number by every participant in securtties market. Members holding shares in electronic form are
therefore requested to submit the PAN to their depository participants with whom they are
maintaining their de-mat account. A person. whose name 15 recorded 1n the Register of Members or
in the Register of Beneficial Owners mamtamed by the depositories as on the cut-off date, shall only
be entitied to avail the facility of Poll.

. Instructions for remote e-voting are as below:

In terms of the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Admumistration) Rules, 2014 as amended (hereinafter called “the Bules™ for the
purpose of this section of the Notice) and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2013, the Company 1s providing facility of remote e-voting
to exercise votes on the items of business prven in the Notice of Annual General Meeting (AGM)
through electronic voting svstem. to members holding shares as on Monday. 23™ September. 2024
(end of day), being the cotr-off date fixed for determining voting rights of members, enfitled to
participate in the remote e-voting process, through the e-voting platform provided by CDSL or to
vote at the AGM

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

(1)

(1)

(111)

(iv)

(v)

The voting period begins on 27% September 2024 at 09.00 AM and ends on 29% September 2024 at
05.00 PM. Duning this period sharcholders of the Company. holding shares etther in physical form
or 1n dematenialized form, as on the cut-off date Monday, 234 September, 2024 mav cast their vote

electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the

meeing venue.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www evotingindia com.

Cliclcon “Sharcholders™ module.

Now enter yvour User ID



Alternatively, 1f vou are registered for CDSL's EASI/EASIEST e-zervices, vou can log-in at
https..www cdshndia com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Onece you successfully
log-in to CDSL"s EASLEASIEST s-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP 1D followed by & Dhgits Client 1),
Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the

Company.

OR

vour vote electromically.

(v1)

(vii)

(i)

(1)

Next enter the Image Venfication as displayed and Click on Login.

If vou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www evotingindia com and voted on

an earlier e-voting of any company. then vour existing password 13 to be used.

If vou are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical
Form

PAN

Enter vour 10digit alpha-numeric *PAN 1ssued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physical shareholders)

* Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Companyv/Depository Participant are requested to use the

sequence number sent by CompanyRTA or contact
Company/RTA

Dividend Bank
Details

OR TDlate of
Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyvyy
format) as recorded m vour demat account or in the company
records o order to login
* If both the details are not recorded with the depository or
company please enter the member 1d / folio number in the
Dhividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

After entering these details appropniately, click on “"SUBMIT tab.

10



(%)

(x1)

(3e11)

(xii1)

(x1v)

(=v)

(xvi)

(xviL)

{xvu)

(x1x)

{xx)

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, sharcholders holding shares in demat form will now reach Password Creation” menu
wheremn they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field.
Kindly note that this password 1s to be also vsed by the demat holders for voung for resolutions of
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other
person and take utmost care to keep yvour password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the detatls can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vate:

On the voung page, vou will see " RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION and against the same the option
“YESNO™ for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that yvou
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that vou dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK™ 1if vou wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution yvou have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT™. A confirmation box
will be displaved. If vou wish to confirm your vote, click on "0OK™, slee to change vour vote, click
on “CANCEL™ and accordingly modify yvour vote.

Once yvou "CONFIRM™ yvour vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify vour vote.

You can also take a prnint of the votes cast by chicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting

page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
Sharcholders can also cast theiwr vote using CDSL"s mobile app "m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can
be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the mstructions as prompted by the mobile app

while Remote Voting on your mobile.

Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —Remote Voting

11



Non-Individual shareholders (1.2. other than Individuals. HUF, NEI etc ) and Custodians are required
to log on to www evotngindia com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.
A scanned copv.of the Registration Form beanng the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed

to helpdesk evoting(f cdslmdia com.

After recerving the login detmls a Compliance User should be created using the admun login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote
on

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk evoting@cdshindia com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued 1n
favour of the Custodian_ 1f anv, should be uploaded 1 PDF fonmat in the system for the scrutimzer
to verify the same.

Alternatively, Non-Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution
Authonity letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who
are authonized to vote, to the Scrutimzer and to the Company at the email address iz
hindaf1980@ gmail com. if they have voted from indnidual tab & not uploaded same in the CD5L
g-voung system for the scrunnizer to venfy the same.

If vou have anv quernies or 1ssues regarding -Voting from the - Voting Syvstem. you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs™) and e-voting manual available at wuww svotngindia com,
under help section or write an ematl to helpdesk svoting @ cdslindia com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder
{022- 23058738 ) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dahyvi (022-23038542).

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed 1o Mr.
Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Lumited. A Wing, 25th Floor,
Marathon Futurex. Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Josh:t Marg, Lower Parel (East). Mumbai -
400013 or send an emal to helpdesk evoting@cdslindia com or call on 022-23058542/43.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/-
Subhash Sapra
Date: 02.09.2024 {(Managing Director)
Place: New Delhi DIN:00241940

12



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM NO.3

This Explanatory Statement 15 1n terms of Regulation 36(3) of the Securmes and Exchange Board of India
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20135 ("SEBI Listing Regulations™) though
statutorily not required in terms of Section 102 of the Act.

The appointment of Stattory Auditor M/s Luthra & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
031997N) was for five years from the conclusion of the 39th AGM till the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting to be held in yvear 2024 Therefore; the tenure of the said auditors has been completed and therefore we
are appomting new auditors for our company.

After evaluating and considering various factors such as Industry experience, competency of the audit team,
efficiency in conduct of audit, independence, etc_. the Board of Directors of the Company ((Board™) has based
on the recommendanons of the Audit Commuttes proposed the appomntment of M/s B. B. Chaudhary & Co_, as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a term of five years from the conclusion of Forty forth AGM till the
conclusion of forty minth AGM of the Company to be held 1n vear 2029, at a remuneration as may be mutually
agreed between the Board and the Statutory Auditors.

M's B. B. Chaudhary & Co. have given consent to their appointment as the Statutory Auditors and have
confirmed that the appomntment. if made. would be within the limits specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the
Act and that they are not disqualified to be appointed as the Stautory Auditors in terms of the provisions of
Section 139 and 141 of the Actand Rules framed thersunder.

Besides the audit services, the Company may also obtain certifications from the Statutory Auditors under vanous
statutory reguolations and certifications required by banks, statutorv authorities, audit related services and other
permissible non-audit services as required from time to time, for which they will be remunerated separately on
mutually agreed terms, as approved by the Board in consultation with the Audit Committee.

The Board tn consultation with the Avdit Commuttee, mayv alter and varv the terms and conditions of
appomntment, including remuneration, 1 such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the
Statutory Auditors.

None of the Directors. Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are - any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise in the resolution at Item No. 3 of the accompanying notice.

13



ANNEXUREITO THE NOTICE
DETAIIS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED TUNDER

REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE

REQUIRFMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARTAT STANDARD-2

Name Mr. Neera Sapra

Director Identification Number (DIN)

00241941
D.0O.B. 27/07/1933
Brief Resume including experience Graduate
Expertise in specificarea She has expertise mn admimstering the business

operations of Company.

Date of First appointment on the 01/01/1999

Board of the
Company

No. of Equity Shares held as on
31 March, 2024 336700

Remuneration last drawn by such
person, if any Fs 90,000 pa

Lk

No. of Meetings of the Board
attended during the vear

Terms and Conditions of She was appointed as Director we f 01.01.1999.
Appointment

List of Directorship held in other
listed companies Nil

14



Chairman/Member of the
Commiitees of the Board of
Directors of other listed Company

Names of Listed Companies in which
the person is ChairmanMember of
Committees of the Board

Nil

Names of Listed Companies from
which the person has resigned in past
three vears

Relationship
with Directors and KAIP's

She 15 wife of Mr. Subhash Sapra Managmng Director .

In case of Independent Directors, the
skills and capabilities required for
the role and the manner in which the
proposed persom meets  such
requirements

NA
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HINDUSTAN AUTO FINANCE LIMITED

Regd. Add.: Cabin No. DA-8, 2" Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, New Delhi - 110092
E-Mail: hindaf1280@gmail.com, CIN: L65910DL1980PLC010617
Website: www.hindaf.in

BOARD'S REPORT

To
The Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present to the valued stakeholders. the 44® Annual Report of M/s
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited along with the Aundited Financial Statements of the Company for
the Year ended 31 March. 2024

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS- AT A GLANCE

e Overall Performance of vour Company

= Durning the financial year 2023-24, the Company has shown some recovery from the previous
financial year and had bocked a net profit of Bs. 81, 786.00 as compared tonet loss of Rs. 5,36 238 00
during the financial year 2022-23

e The financial summary. performance highlichts operations/state of affair of vour
Company for the vear are summarized below:

Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Standalone
2023-24 | 202223

Income from Business Operations 13.63 153,108
Other Income 06.25 -
Total Income 19.88 15108
Less: Expenditure except Depreciation 19.05 204586
Profit/Loss before Interest, Depreciation and 00.82 -5.348
Tax
Less: Interest and other Financial Charge(s) = =
Profit/Loss before Depreciation and Tax 00.82 -3.348
Less: Depreciation 0.00 0.00
Profit/Loss before Tax 00.82 -5.348
Less: Tax Expense 0.00 0.014
Add: Deferred Tax Asset - -
Net Profit/Loss after Tax 00.82 5,362

16



Earmings per share:
Basic 0.023 (0.13)
Diluted 0.023 (0.15)

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Dhuring the financial year 2023-24_the Company eamned a net profit of Rs. 81.786.00 as compared 10
net loss of Rs. 3,36, 238/~ in financial vear 2022-23

DIVIDEND

To conserve the financial resources. the company has not recommended any dividend 1n the financial
vear ended March 31, 2024

CHANGE IN NATURF OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of business during the year under review.

RESERVES

The Board proposed to transfer the entire profit of Rs. 81_786 .00 to the reserves & surplus account

TRANSFER OF UNCILAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Drnadend declared or paid by the Company, the provisions of
Section 125 of the Companies Act. 2013 do not apply.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of section 73 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Compames (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 There were
no deposits which remaned unpaid or unclaimed by the Company as on March 31, 2024

SHARF CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Company has not issued or allotied any equity shares with or
without differential rights.

Authorised Share Capital:

During the year under review, there was no change in Authorized Share capital of the Company. The
Authorized Share Capatal of the Company 1z Rs. 6,00.00.000 divided into 6000000 equity shares of
Rs 10 each

17



Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital:

During the vear under review, there was no change 1n Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of the
Company. The present Paid-up Capital of the Company 15 Bs. 3,30,28.000 divided into 3502800
equity shares of Bs. 10 each.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Bule 12 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return for the financial vear
2023-24 15 available on the website of the company viz. www hindaf in and can be accessed through

link https://hindaf in User/view desk/32.
SUBSIDIARY / ASSOCIATE/ JOINT VENTURES COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Jount Venture or Associate Companies dunng the
financial vear ended 2023-24.

LISTING

The shares of the Company are listed at Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India ("MSEI™). The listing
fees for the financial year 2023-24 has been paid to MSEL The ISIN of the Companv i
INEB06QO1018

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIALI PERSONNEL

Constitution of the Board:

As on 31" March, 2024, the Board compnises following directors:

Name  of | Category | Date of | Total No. of Committee No. of
Director cumn Appointmen | Directorship Shares
Designati | t at current In which Mo which held as on
on term & e March 31,
designation Director Chaiiaan 2022
is member
Mr. Subhash Managing | 15/06/2005 1 0 0 450300
Sapra Director
Mrs. Neera | Director 30/03/2015 1 0 0 336700
Sapra
Mr. Sumit | Director | 29/11/2022 1 3 =T
Bansal
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Mr. Man | Director 24/08/2018 1 600

Singh
Tosana

Lad
L=
i

Mr. Sudhur | Director 24/08/2018 1

Jamn

142

Lad

=
i

Mr. Paritosh | Diractor 07/01/2021
Kumar
Bansal*

I Excluding LLPs, Section § Company & Struck off Compames

* Committee includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committees across all Public
Companies.

*Mr_ Partosh Kumar Bansal has resigned from the directorship of the company we £ 01.07.2023.

The Board of Directors of the Company has opumum combination of executive and non-executive
directors including imndependent directors and women director in compliance with applicable
provisions of this Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2013, As on 31% March. 2024, the Board of Directors comprises of 3 (Five) Directors out of which
1 (One) 18 Executive Directors, 1 (One) 158 Non-Executtve Director and 3 (three) are Independent
Dhrectors.

None of the Directors of Beard 1s a member of more than ten Committee or Chairman of more than
five commuttees across all the public companies m which thev are Director.

Directors retire by Rotation

Pursuant to Section 132 of the Companies Act, 2013 and tn accordance with Articles of Association
of the Company, Mrs Neera Sapra. Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and heing elimihle offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors
recommends his appomtment,

The relevant details as required under Reg 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Fequirements) Regulations, 2013 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by Insttute of Company
Secretanies of India of the person secking appointment as Director 15 annexed to the Notice convening
the 44% Annual General Meeting.

Changes during the year

During the financial vear 2023-24_ Mr. Parntosh Kumar Bansal, Independent Director, has resigned
from the position of Independent Directorship, citing personal reasons, with effect from 01.07. 2024,
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Key Managerial Personnel

Az on March 31, 2024, following are the Key Managenal Personnel of the Company:

SNo. Name Designation

1. Mr. Subhash Sapra Managing Director

2: Mrs. Neera Sapra Dhrector & Chief Financial Officer

3 Mr. Rishabh Aggarwal Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

DECILARATION OF INDEPENDENCE GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS &

ADHFRENCE TO THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT FOR INDEPENDENT

DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have confirmed to the Board that they meet the critena of Independence
as laid down under section 142(6) of the Companies Act. 2013 and that they qualify to be Independent
Dhirectors pursuant to Rule 5 of the Compantes (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 They have also confirmed that they meet the criteria for the requirements of “Independent
Director” as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

Further, in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified i
Listing Regulanions and they are independent of the management. All the Independent Directors have
affirmed that they have adhered and complied with the Company’ s Code of Conduct for Independent
Dhrectors prescribed in Schedule TV to the Act

Further, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances,
sttuation which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact thewr ability to
discharge thewr duties with an ebjective mndependent judgement and without any external influence.

It may be noted thart all the Independent Directors on the Board of the Company as on March 31,
2024 have been registered 1n the data bank of Independent Directors as per Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, Further, in terms of Secuion 130 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appomtment & Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, Mr. Partosh Kumar Bansal and Mr. Sumit Bansal has passed the online proficiency self-
assessment test and Mr. Sudhir Jain and Mr. Man Singh Tosana are exempted from underaking
online self-assessment test.

The Board 1s of the opmnion that the Independent Directors on the board of the Company possess
requisite qualifications, experience and expertise and that they hold highest standards of integrity
and are independent of management.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors met five times during the financial vear ended 31® March. 2024 in accordance
with the provisions of Companies Act. 2013 and rules made thereunder. The intervening gap between
two board meetings was within the peniod as prescnbed under the Companies Act, 2013, Secretarnial
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Standrad-1 and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015, The
requisite quonum was present at all the meetings and continued valuable snputs on the matters brought
before the Board of Directors from time to time.

Date of Board Meetings 1.e. 29.05.2023, 21.07.2023, 17.08.2023, 14.11 2023 and 14.02.2024.

The details of attendance of Directors at the Board Mesting are as under:

5.No. Name of Directors No. of Board Meetings
Held Attended
; X Subhash Sapra 3 3
2- Neera Sapra 3 3
i 2 Sumit Bansal 3 3
4 Man Singh Tosana 3 3
5. Sudhir Jain 3 3
6. Paritosh Kumar Bansal*® 1 1

* Mr. Panitosh Kumar Bansal has resigned from the directorship of the company wef 01.07 2023,

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Commuttees play vital role 1n strengthening the Corporate Govemance practices of the
Company and focus effectively on the issues and expedient resolution of the diverse matters. The
Commuttee also make specific recommendations to the Board on various matters as and when
required. All observations, recommendations and decisions of the Commattes were placed before the

Board for mfermation. noting and approval.

As on March 31, 2024, the following committess have been constituted in terms of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclesure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Compamies Act, 2013,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Your Company has constituted Audit Commuittee in compliance with provisions of Section 177 of
the Companies Act. 2013 & Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

. Meetings during the vear

During the year, the Audit Committee of the Company met 4 (four) times wviz. 220320235,
21.07:2023_14.11 2023 and 14 .02 2024
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Composition and Attendance of Audit Commitiee as on March 31. 2024

The Composition of the Audit Commuattee of the Board of the Company along with details of the
meetings held and attended during the financial vear 2023-24 are detailed below:

5.No. | Name Category Designation |No. of No. of
Committee Commuittee
Meetings MMeetings
held Attended
X . 3
1. Sumit Bansal Independent Clinisai 1 4
Director
4 : : Dok
.5 sudhir Jain In_dependem Member 1 1
Darecior
3. Man Singh Tosana Iﬂd&p&ﬂdfﬂt - 4 4
Director

*Nr. Sumat Bansal was the Chairman for the meestings dated 14.11 2023 and 14.02 2024
** Mr. Sudhir Jain was the Chairman for the meetings dated 29 052023 and 21.07 2023,

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration Commuittee of the Company has been constituted in compliance
with provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Repulation 19 of the Listing
Regulations.

Meetings during the vear

During the vear under review, the Nomuination and Remuneration Commattes members met once on
29.05:2023

Composition and Attendance of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on March 31,

2024.

The Composimon of the Nomunation and Remuneration Commuttee of the Board of the Company
along with details of the meetings held and attended during the financial vear 2023-24 are detailed

below:

S.No. |[Name Category Designation | No. of No. of
Committee Committee
;'Meetingﬁ Aleetings
held Attended
1. Sumit Bansal Independent |y . 1 1
Director
2: Sudhir Jan Independent Meniber | 1 1
Diactor |
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3. Man Singh Tosana

Independent
Director

Member

STAKFHOIDERS RET ATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Your Company has constituted Stakeholders’ Relationship Commuttee in compliance with provisions
of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Listing Repulations.

Meetings during the year

Dhuring the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company met 4 (four)
tmes on 29.05.2023, 21.07 2023, 14.11.2023 and 14.02.2023.

Composition and Attendance of Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2024,

The Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Commaittes of the Board of the Company along
with details of the meetings held and attended duning the financial vear 2023-24 are detailed below:

8. No. |Name Designation Category No. of No. of
Committee Committee
Aeetings Aeetings
lheld Attended
- =
1. Sunut Bansal Iudepmdent Chisi 1 4
Director
“1 . oy
2 Sudhir Jain Iﬂﬂepmdent Mesiibict 1 1
Director
£ Man Singh Tosaria In;lependent Member 4 2
Director

*Mr. Sumit Bansal was the Chairman for the meetings dated 14.11 2023 and 14 02 2024,
*% My Sudhir Jain was the Chairman for the meetings dated 29.05.2023 and 21.07 2023,

VIGIL MECHANISMAWHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Dyursuant to the provisions of section 177 of the Compantes Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the SEBI
{Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2013, the Company has adopted a Vigil
Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy for securing'reporting/deternng’punishing’rectifying any
unethical unlawful acts. behaviour, leak/'suspected leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information
etc. and to address the bona fide concern of malpractice, deviation from the policies of the Company
mternally i an effective and syvstematic manner afier 1ts discovery.

The functioning of the vigitl mechanism iz reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time.
During the year under review, no compliant pertaiming to the Company was received under the
Whistle Blower Policy Vigil Mechanism

The said policy 1s available on the Company's website and can be accessed through the link
hitps://hindaf in User/view desk/23.
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PERFORMANCE EVAIUATION OF THE BOARD. ITS COMMITTEES AND

INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS.

In terms of the provisions of section 134{3)(p) of the Companmies Act. 2013 read with SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2013, a formal annual performance evaluation
has been done by the Board of its own performance, the Directors indtvidually as well as evaluation
of its committees.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seclang feedback from all the
Dhrectors on the basis of parameters/criteria such as Board Composition & Quality, Board Meetings
and procedures. Board strategy and Risk Management. Beard and Management Relations,
Succession Planning The performance evaluation of the Directors was carnied out by the entire
Board (excluding the director being evaluated). The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the
evaluation process.

The performance of the Commuitiees was evalvated by the Board after secking feedback from
committee members on the basis of parameters/criteria such as functions and duties of Committees,
adequacy of commuttee composition. effectiveness of meetings etc.

Independent Directors of the Company in their separate meeting held on 29" May. 2023 reviewed
the performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. They also reviewed the
performance of the Chairman of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAI PERSONNEL

The Board on the recommendanon of Nomination & Remuneration Commities, framed a policy
relating to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel and
other emplovess_ along with the criteria for appointment and removal of Directors. Key Managerial
personnel and Sentor Management Personnel of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration
Commuttee of the Company 1s fully empowered to determine 'approve and revise subject to necessary
approvals, the remuneration of managenal personnel. after taking into account the financial position
of the Company, trends in mdustry, qualification, experience, past performance etc. The Non-
Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for every meeting of the Board and 1ts commuitiees attended
by them. The Nomination and Remuneration policy 1s available on the website of the Company at
httpz:/hindaf in Userview desk/23.

FAMIT JTARIZATION POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 25(7) of Listing Regulations, 2013, the Board has framed a
policy to familiarize Independent Directors about the Company and same can accessed through hink
bitps:/ hindaf inUserview desk/23 .
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AUDITORS
A STATUTORY AUDITOR

M's Luthra & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 031997N) carnied out the
Statutory Audit of the Company for the financial vear ended 2023-24 . There were no adverse remarks
or qualification on accounts of the Company from the Statutory Auditor. The Notes on Accounts and
observations of the Auditors in their Report on the Accounts of the Company are self-explanatory
and in the opinion of the Directors, do not call for anv further clanfication(s). Also. the report
submitted by the Auditor 1= ungualified.

B, SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to provision of section 204 of the Companies act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Appomtment and BEemuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014, the Board of Directors based
on recommendation of Audit Commuttes has appownted M's Anju Bansal & Associates, Company
Secretanies as a Secretarial Auditor in their meeting held on 27.05.20192 tll the time the power 1s
revoked by the Board of Directors at a remuneration as Board of Directors may think fit i
consultation with the Secretarial Auditor.

The Secretanal Audit for the financial vear ended 31¥ March, 2024 was conducted by M's Anju
Banzal & Associates. Company Secretaries, and the report thereon 15 annexed herewnth as
“Annexure- A”

Qualification{s) and Directors’ comments on the report of Secretarial Auditor:

1. The Annual General Meeting to be held in 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 was conducted beyond
prescribed time period and that too without the approval of Registrar of Comperies. Thereafter,
the Company has not filed the application for compounding of respective Annual General

Meetings.

Feplv of Manasement in respect of observanions made by the Secretarial Auditors 1n their report:

1. In respect of observation made pertaining to conducting aof Annual General Meeting ta be held
in 2019, 2020,2021 and 2022 beyond prescribed time period and that too without the approval
of Registrar of Companies and thereafter, the Company has not filed the application for
compounding of respective Annual General Meetings, 1t 15 replied by the management that
Company did not have a Company Secretary and other professional till September 30, 2022, who
could have assisted in conducting the Annual General Meeting timely, however the said AGM's
have been conducted after the end of financial year 2022-13 and the application for compounding
i respact of conducting of Annual General meetings beyvond prescribed time period will be filed
by the Company once the financial position of the company becomes sound and company would
te in the position to bear the financial burden of the penalties which would be levied consequent
upon filing of the compounding application.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board of Directors in theiwr meeting held on 21 08 2018 appomnted Ankit Satyva & Associates,
Chartered Accountants ({(FRN:025230C) as an Internal Auditor of the Company wef 21082018
t1ll the time power reviewed revoked by the Board of Dhrectors:

DETATILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITOR

Durning the year under review, the Statutory Auditor and Secretanal Auditor have not reported any
mstances of fraud committed by the Company or 1ts officers. or emplovees to the Audit Committee
under Section 143(12) of the Act. Therefore no details are required to be disclosed under Section
134(3)(ca) of the Act.

PARTICUILAR OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013

The Company has not given any loan(s) or guarantes(s) and has not made any investinent covered
under the provision of the section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 duning the vear under review

PARTICULAR OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RFIATED PARTIES
UNDER SECTION 138 OF THE COMPAIES ACT, 2013

During the financial year 2023-24 company did not enter iato any contracts or arrangements with
any related party. Form AOC-2 is also attached herewith as Annexure-B.

MATERTAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS. TF ANY AFFECTING THE FIANNCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FIANNCIAL STATEMENTS
REILATE AND THE DATE OF THIS REPORT.

There are no matenal changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
between the end of financial vear 31st March, 2024 and the date of this Report.

DETATILS OF SIGNIFICANT ANDAMATERIAT ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCEEN STATUS AND
COMPANY'S OPERATIONS INFUTURE.

During the financial vear 2023-24, no sigmificant and material order(s) were passed by any
regulator{s) or courts or tribunals which could impact the going concern status and company’s
operation 1 future

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT-GO

The provisions of Section 134(3)({m) of the Compames Act, 2013 are not applicable to your Company
since vour Company bemng engaged in financing business, does not have any actovity relating to
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conservation of energy and did not undertake any research and development activity or dermved any
benefit out of it No efforts were made towards technology absorption. There was no foreign
exchange nflow or outflow during the vear under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The provisions of SEBI Regulations for formation of Risk Management Committes are not
applicable to the Company. However, as per section 134 (3) (n) of Companies Act 2013, the company
regularly maintains a proper check in normal course of s business regarding risk managsement.
Currently, the company does not identify any element of risk which may threaten the existence of
the company

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Beard comprises of adequate number of members with diverse expenience and skalls, such that
it best zerves the govemance and strategic needs of the Companv. The Directors are persons of
eminence in areas such as finance, accounting and corporate law etc. bring with them experience and
skills which add value to the performance of the Board. The Directors are selected purely on the basis
of merit with no discrinination on race, colour, rehigion. gender or nationality.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The company does not fall under the criteria of net worth, turnover or profit for apphicabiliy of
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) provisions as per Section 1335 of the Companies Act, 2013,
hence the same are not applicable to the company for the pertod under review.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The maintenance of Cost records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 20013 are not applicable to the Company.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAI HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

As per the requirement of “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preventon, Prohibition
& Redressal) Act. 20137 and Rules made thereunder, vour Company has constituted Internal
Complamnts Committee (ICC) at 1ts workplaces. During the vear, no complaints were filed with the
Company

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company's Corporate Govemance philosophy 15 governed by 1ts commitment to mun its
business in legal ethical and transparent manner. The Company belteves that sound corporate
governance 15 critical m enhancing and retaming investor trust. Transparency, Accountability,
fairness and intensive commumcation with stakeholders are mtegral to our functioning.

27



The Board has framed Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the
Company and they have affirmed the compliance for the financial vear ended March 31. 2024 by
virtue of Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,
2015, the Compliance with Corporate Governance provisions as specified inregulations 17 to 27 and
clauzes (b) to (1) sub regulatien (2) of Regulation 46 and Para C. I and E of Schedule V were not

applicable to the Company for the financial vear 2023-24 Hence, Corporate Governance report does
not form part of this Annual Report.

PARTICTUIARS OF EMPIOYFES

The Company has no employee who 1s 1n receipt of remuneration of Rs. 830,000 per month or Bs.
1.02_00_000 per annum and hence_the Company 15 not required to give informanon as requured under
the provisions of Rule 3(2) & (3) of the Companies {Appomntment and Remuneration of Managenal
DPersonnel) Rules, 2014,

Further the details pursuant to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are attached herewith as Annexure-C and names of top ten
emplovees in terms of remuneration drawn by them pursuant to Rule 3{2) of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managenal Perzonnel) Rules, 2014 are attached herewith as
Annexure-1).

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADFQUACY

The Company has a robust and comprehensive Internal Financial Control system commensurate with
the size_scale and complexity of its operation The svstem encompasses the major processes 1o ensure
reliability of financial reporting, compliance with policies, procedures, laws, and regulations,
safeguarding of assets and economacal and efficient use of resources,

The Company has performed an evaluation and made an assessment of the adequacy and the
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal Financial Control System. The Statutory Auditors of the
Company have also reviewead the Internal Financial Control system mmplemented by the Company
on the financial reporting and in their opinton, the Company has. 1n all material respects, adequate
Internal Fimancial Control system over Financial Reporting and such Controls over Financial
Reporting were operating effectively as on 31 March. 2024 based on the internal control over
financial reporting cotenia established by the Company.

The policies and procedures adopted by the Company ensures the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business and adherence to the company’'s policies, prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
accuracy & completeness of the records and the timely preparation of reliable financial informanion.

The Internal auditors continuously monttor the efficacy of internal controls with the objective of
providing to the Audit Committes and the Board. an independent. objective and reasonable assurance
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the orgamization’'s risk management with regard to the internal
control framework.
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PERSONNEL RELATIONS

Your Directors hereby place on record their appreciation for the services rendered by executives,
staff and other workers of the Company for thewr hard work, dedication and commitment. Duning the

vear under review, relations between the Emplovees and the Management coniinued to- remam
cordial.

CODE OF CONDLUCT

The Board of Directors has laid down the code of conduct for all Board Members and members of
the Senior Management of the Company. Additionally, all Independent Directors of the company
shall be bound by duties of Independent Directors as setout in Companies Act, 2013 to be read with
SEBI Listing Regulanons, 2015,

All Board Members; Kev Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Persennel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct.

POLICY OF PRESERVATION OF DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Regulation 9 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2013, the Company has adopted the policy of preservation of documents to preserve the documents

to preserve the documents as per Regulation 9(a) & 9(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations. The said policy
15 available on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the hnk
https: hindaf inUserview desk/23

DETAIIS OF APPIICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE. 2016 DURING THE YEAR ATONGWITH
THEIR STATUS AT THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR.

During the financial vear under review, no application was made or any proceedings under the

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 was pending.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT
THE TIME OF ONE TIMFE SETTIFEMENT AND THE VAIUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH
REASONS THEREOE:

Not Applicable

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysizs Report for the vear under review, as stipulated under
Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 1=
presented 1n a separate section of this Annual Report as Annexure-E.
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a)
b)
)

GENERAL

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting 1s required in respect of the following 1tems as

there were no transactions on these 1tems during the vear under review

Voluntary revision of Financial Statement or Board Reports

Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend. voting and otherwise.

Managing Director and Whole Time Directors have recerved the remuneration within a regulatory
limit of the Compantes Act, 2013

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013, the Directors. would like to state as follows:

(a) Inthe preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Indian Accounting Standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and have made
jodgments & estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true & fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that
period;

{c) Proper & sufficient care has been taken for the mamtenance of adequate accounting records m
accordance with the provisions of this act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing & detecting fraud & other trregulanties;

(d) The Annual Accounts has been prepared on a going concem basis;

() Proper Internal Financial Controls were followed by the Companyv and such Internal Financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(f) Propersystems are devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for assistance and co-operation
recetved from the vanous stake holders mcluding Financial Institutions, Banks. Governmental
authorities and other business associates who have extended thewr valuable support and
encouragement dunng the vear under review,

Your Directors take the opportunity to place on record their desp appreciation of the committed
services rendered by the emplovees at all levels of the Company. who have contributed significantly

30



towards Company's performance and for ephancing its inherent strength Your Directors also
acknowledge with gratitude the encouragement and support extended by cur valuad stakeholders:

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra
(Managing Director) (Director & Chief Financial Officer)
DIN: 00241940 DIN: 00241941

Date: 02.09.2024
Place: New Delhi
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ANJU BANSAL & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Office : B-299, Ganga Sagar, Ganga Nagar, Meerut UP-250001
Mob. 8456976019, 8171955114 E-mail ; anjubnsi29@gmail.com

MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204( 1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies{ Appointment
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members;

Hindustan Auto Finance Limited,
Cabin No. DA-8. 2™ Floor, Vikas Marg,
Shakarpur, New Delhi, 110092,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence 1o good corporate practices by Hindustan Auto Finance Ltd (hereinafier called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluatingthe corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the M/s Hindustan Auto Finance Ltd books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers. agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit. We
hereby report that in our opinion. the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31 March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books. forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by M/s Hindustan Auto Finance Ltd (“the Company™) for the financial year ended on .3 bl
March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1936 (*SCRA’) and the rules made there under:

(i) The Depositories Act. 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent

of Foreign Dirsct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commereial Borrowings; (Not
applicable to the company during the audit period. .

32
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Office : B-299, Ganga Sagar, Ganga Nagar, Meerut UP-250001
Mob. 9456976019, B171955114 E-mall : anjubnsi29@gmail.com

(v)

1)

(b}

()

(c)

e}

(f)

th)

(i)

{(vi)

{a)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act. 1992 (*SEBI Act’):-

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations.2009;

The Securities and Exchanpe Board of India (Employee Stock Optien Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; Not Applicable

The Seeurities and Exchange Board ol India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
Nol Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an lssue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; Not
Applicable and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securitics) Regulations. 1998: Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations. 2015

The Management has identified and confirmed the following laws as specifically applicable to
Company:

The EPF & Misc. Provisions Act, 1952

We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like Direct &
Indirect tax laws have not been reviewed in this audit since the same was subject to review by the
Slatutory Auditors,

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India except Secretarial
Standard-2

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provi B
Regulations, Guidelines. Standards, ete, mentioned above subject to the folloyi]
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a. The Annual General Meeting to be held in 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 was conducted beyond

prescribed time period and that too without the approval of Registrar of Companies. Thereafier, the
Compuany has not filed the application for compounding of respective Annual General Meetings.

We further report that during the period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company was duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Independent
Lhrectors.

Adeguate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Notice of Board Meeting,
Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance. A system exists for
Directors to seek and obtain further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions of Board/Committees were carried through majority. We are informed that there were no
dissenting members view on any of the matters during the year that were required to be captured and
recorded as part of minutes.

We further report that during the Audit period there were no specific event/actions having a major
bearing on Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, regulations, guidelines, standards
elc.

Anju Bansal .
Practicing Company Secretary

Mem. No. 12334, C.Q).P. No. 17594, P.R.C No-2865/2022
Place: Meerut

Date:25/08/2024

UDIN: F012334F001049128

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as *Ammexure-1" and formis an
integral part of this report.
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6.

Annexure-1

To.

The Members,

Hindustan Auto Finance Limited,
Cabin No. DA-8, 2nd Floor,
Vikas Marg. Shakarpur,

New Delhi. 110092

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate (o oblain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations. standards
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has condueted the affairs of the company.

For Anju Bansal & Associates
Company Secretaries

CS Anju Bansal

Mem. No. 12334, C.0O.P. No. 17
Place: Meerut

Date:25/08/2024
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Annexure-B
FORM NO. AOC-2
{Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Bule
8(2) of the Companies {AccountsiRules. 2014

Forms for disclosure of particulars of contracts’arrangements enterad mto by the company with related
parties referred to in sub- section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 macluding certamn
arm s length transactions under third proviso thereto:

. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm s length basis:

The Company has not entered 1nto contract’amrangementtransaction with its related parties which 1s
not i ordinary course of business or at anm’s length basis dunng FY 2023-24

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relarionship- Not Applicable.

Nature of contracts/arrangements transactions- Not Applicable.

Duration of the contracts/arrangements Transactions-Not Applicable.

Salient terms of the confracts or arrangements or transactions includmg the value, if any- Not
Applicable.

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions- Not Applicable.

Date(s) of approval hv the Board- Not Applicable.

Amount paid as advances, if any- Not Applicable.

Date on which the Special Resolution was passed 1n general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188-Not Applicable

Details of matenial contracts or amrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship- Not Applicable.

Nature of contracts/arrangements transactions- Not Applicable.

Druration of the contracts’arrangements Transactions-Not Applicable.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any- Not
Applhicable.

Justification for entening into such contracts or arrangements or transactions- Not Applicable.

Date(s) of approval by the Board- Not Applicable.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For M's Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra
{(Managing Director) (Director & Chief Financial Officer)

DIN:00241940 DIN: 00241941

Date: 02.09.2024
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure-C

Disclosures pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Rule 5(1) of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules. 2014

a) The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of emplovees for the
financial vear:

S.No. Name Designation Ratio against
median emplovee’s
remuneration

1. | Mr. Subhash Sapra Managing Director 0.075
2. Mrs. Neera Sapra® Director & Chief Financial 0
Officer
3. | Mr Man Singh Tosaria Independent Director 0
4 | Mr. Sudhir Kumar Jain Independent Director 0
5. | Mr. Partosh Kumar Independent Director 0
| Bansal
6. | Mr Sumuit Banzal Independent Director 0

*Mrs_Neera Sapra has been paid salary i the capacity of Chief Financial Officer.

b) The Percentage increase in remuneration of each director. Chief Financial Officer. Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

S.No. Name of Director/CFO Category % Increase in
Remuneration in
the financial vear

1. | Mr. Subhash Sapra Managing Director 0.00%

2. | Mrs. Neera Sapra* | Director & Chief Financial 0.00%4s
| Officer
3. | Mr_Rishabh Aggarwal** | Company Secretary 20.00%

* Mrs. Neera Sapra was pard salary in the capacity of Chief Financial Officer
¢} The percentage increase in the median remuneration of emplovees in the financial vear:

The Percentage mcrease in median remuneration of emplovees 1n the financial year was
32.5353%.

d) The number of permanent emplovees on the rolls of the Company: 3 emplovees as on March

312024

e) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employvees other than managenial
personnel in the last fimancial yvear and its comparison with percentile increase in managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:
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The average mcrease in remuneration of the emplovees.1s 32.33%. The average increase 10 overall

managenal remuneration 1s (0%
f) Affirmation that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
The Company affirms that the remuneration 15 as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For M/s Hindustan Aute Finance Limited

Sd/- Sdi-

Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra
(Managing Director) {Director & Chief Financial Officer)

DIN:00241940 DIN: 00241941

Date: 02.09.2024
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXTRE-D

Information as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules. 2014 and forming part of the Director’s Report for the vear ended March 31,
2024.

Name of top ten emplovees in terms of remuneration drawn:

Emplovee Designatio | Qualificatic | Date  of | Remuneratio | Age | Last
Name n n and | commenc | n/Salarv employm
eXperience ement of | received ent held
of emplovee | employme by
nt employve
e.
Mr.  Sauresh Senior Graduate & | 09.08.1994 | Rs.2.40,000~ | 64 NA
Chand Accountant | exp. of more
Sharma than
30 years
Mr. Rishabh | Company Post Graduate | 01.10.2022 | Rs.3.25.000/- | 29 NA
Agoarval Secretary and exp. Of 1
Jea
Mr. Amn Clerk Higher (01.01.2020 | 1.32,000/- 29 NA
EKumar Secondary
Mrs. Neera Director & | Graduate and | 01.01.1999 | 90.000/- &7 NA
Sapra Chief exp. of
Financial more than 20
Officer vears
Mr. Subhash | Managing Graduate, 08.07.1980 | Rs. 10,000/- |76 NA
Sapra Dhrector and exp: of
more than 40
years
Notes

There was no such emplovee emploved throughout the financial vear who was m receipt of
remuneration for that vear which in the aggregate not less than one crore and two lakh rupees.

There was no such employee emploved for a part of the financial year who was in receipt of
remuneration for anv part of that vear, at a rate which 1n the aggregate, not less than eight lakhs and
fifty thousand rupess per month.

Mrs. Neera Sapra, Director & Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Suresh Chand Sharma, Semor Accountant,
Mr: Rishabh Aggarwal Company Secretary and Mr. Amat Kumar were in receipt of remuneration which
in the aggregate, 15 11 excess of that drawn by the managing direcior.



4y M. Suresh Chand Sharma holds 1.60% equity shares and Mr. Subhash Sapra holds 12 86% equity
shares and Mrs. Neera Sapra holds 9.61% equity shares of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For M/s Hindustan Aute Finance Limited

5d/- Sd/i-

Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra
(Managing Director) {Director & Chief Financial Officer)

DIN:00241940 DIN: 00241941

Date: 02.09.2024
Place: New Delhi

40



Annexure-E

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

OVERVIEW OF INDIAN ECONOMY

As of 2024, the Indian economy continues o be one of the world's most dynamic and rapidly growing
economies. Here's a comprehensive overview of the current scenanio. India is experiencing a robust
economic recovery post-pandemic, with GDP growth rates estimated to be around 6-726 for the fiscal
vear 2023-2024. This recovery 15 dniven by strong domestic consumpiton, investment, and export
performance,

GLOBAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

The prolonged geopolitical tension between Russia and Ukraimne has adversely affected global trade and
crude o1l prices, weighing heavily on raw matenal prices. As a cascading effect, economiies across the
world have witnessed a tighter inflationary grip.

DOMESTIC ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

The Indian economy has rebounded strongly from the COVID-19 pandemic, with GDP growth rates:
projected at around 6-7% for the fiscal vear 2023-2024. This recovery 1= drven by inereased domestic
consumption, investment, and exports.

For the fiscal vear 2023-2024_India's GDP growth rate is projected to be around 6-7%: This represents
a strong recovery from the pandemic-induced slowdown and 13 driven by robust domestic demand,
investment, and export performance. Quarterly growth trends show a steady recovery, with significant
contributtons from both the industrnial and services sectors. Investment levels are increasing, particularly
in infrastructure; real estate. and industrial capacity. Foreign direct investment (FDI) continues to flow
mito sectors like technology, pharmaceuticals, and manufacturing.

(Source:  https: umesofindia indiatimes com/business/indiabusiness indias-q3-gdp-at-4-4-economy-
to-grow-at- /-in-fv2 3 https//www.andiabudget gov in/ economicsurvey/doc/eschapter echapl09 pdf

https:/wvww.outlockindia com ‘business growth-premiumnew)

India's GDP growth reflects a resilient and dvnamic economy, driven by strong domestic demand,

investment, and a diverse industrial base. Addressing structural challenges and ensuring inclusive growth

will be kev to sustaining this positive trajectory.
COMPANY OVERVIEW

Our Company 15 engaged in the business of leasing of finance, hire purchase etc: During the financial
year 2023-24, the Company wncurred a net profit of Rs. 81786.00 and the company has shown some
recovery as compared to previous year.
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OUTLOOK

India 15 expected to expenience a slower real GDP growth (relative to FY 2023-24)of 6% to 7% in FY
2023-24 according to S&P Global ratings. The country has recovered quickly from the pandemic, and
the growth in the upcoming vear will be driven by robust domestic demand and mnereased -capital
mnvestment. The Government has raised caprtal expenditure to offset the private sector’s cautious stance
on capital expenditure, supported by strong financials and high GST and direct tax collections.
Nevertheless_ global spills over, high inflation and aggressive monetary pelicies could hinder the steady
growth trajectory. (Given India’s dependmg trade and financial linkages with advanced sconomies,
caution is essential. India’s growth cycle has exiubited a high degree of synchronization with advanced
countries, and 1t 1s impossible to avoid the short-term consequences of a potential downturn

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

During economic crises; financsal institution plays a ecrucial role 1 promoting stability and
implementing regulatory measures to support households and businesses. Ongomg geopolinical
conflicts have been slowed countries post-pandemic recoveries and hastened the normalization of
monetary and fiscal policies after vears of unprecedented stimulus measures. In such situation, Financial
Institutions have emerged as principal institutions providing credit financing to the unorganized and
underserved sectors. playing a significant role in the Indian financial system.

The MSME sector will play-a pivotal role 1n the growth of Financial Instimtions in the country. Despite
being one of the major contributors 1n the country s economy, the MSME sector1s facing credit gap
from the financial institutions. The total addressable market for MISME financing 15 Rs. 46 4 nulhion
with a CAGE. of 13% in the MSME Credit. Only 13% of total addressable market 1s served by the
formal institutions. The rationalization and consolidation of the MSME industry 1n India 15 a much
needed process that 1s expected to bring a host of benefits to the sector.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
Opportunities

¢ Underserved retail and MSME Sector providing greater opportunities for NBFC's to grow
Robust Working capital demand continues to remam poised. Optimistic Capital Markets

* Tax motivanons by Government

* Growmng digitalization and analvtics enhancing lending efficiency.

Threats

¢ Exposure to the abnormal Industry nsk factors

* Entry of many players in the banking and non-banking operations creating stiff competition

* Global economic mmdown may cause market slowdown. Global geopolitical crises may affect
the business scenario of the country
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SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE
The Company operates in one segment 1.& Finance Services.
RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Effective Risk Management 15 essential to the success and sustamability of any business. By intsgrating
risk management mto all of our activities, we ensure that we optimize the risk-return equation while
adhening to all applicable laws. nules and regulations. This approach not only protects our Company
from potential losses but also enhances its reputation as a reliable and responsible financial services
provider. We recogmize that risk management is not a one-time activity but an ongoing process that
requires constant vigilance and adaptation to chansing circumstances

DISSCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Art 2013 and applicable accounting standards 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Acecountams of India.
The details of the financial performarnice of the Company are highlighted below:

Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Standalone
2023-24 2022-23
Income from Business Operations 13:63 1511
Other Income 06.25 -
Total Income 19.88 1511
Less: Expenditure except Depreciation 19.06 2046
Profit/Loss before Interest. Depreciation and 00.52 -5.35
Tax
Less: Interest and other Financial Chargs(s) - -
Profit/Loss before Depreciation and Tax 00.52 -5.35
Less: Depreciation 0.00 0:00
Profit/Loss before Tax 00.82 -5.35
Less: Tax Expense 0.00 0.01
Add: Deferred Tax Asset - -
Net Profit/Loss after Tax 00.82 -5.36
Earmings per share:
Basic 0.023 (0.15)
Diluted 0.023 (0.15)
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has an adequate internal control system commensurate with its size and the nature of its
business in order to achieve efficiency in operation and optimum utilization of resources. These controls
ensure safeguarding of assets; reduction and detection of fraud and error. adequacy and completeness
of the accounting records and timely preparaton of reliable financial information.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Human resources are valuable assets for any orgamzation. The emplovees of the Company have
extended a very productive cooperation mn the efforts of the management to camry the Company to
greater heights. The Company 1z miving emphasis to upgrade the skills of its human resources and
continuous traiing down the line 15 a normal feature in the Company to upgrade the skills and
knowledse of the emplovess of the Company

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations 2018, the Company is required to provide details of significant changes (1. change of 23%
or more as compared to the immediately previous financial vear) in key financial ratios. along with
detailed explanations. The following 1s list of important financial ratios:

Particulars FY-23.24 Fy-2223 % Reason for
Change variance

Debtors T.72% 7.90%; -3% Decrease in ratio 15

Tumover due to increase n

Ratio aAccount
receivables:

Inventory NA NA NA -

Tumover

Ratio

Interest NA NA NA =

Coverage

Ratio

Current 347% 12 66% 2% Decrease 1 ration

Ratio 1s due to Increase
current liab:lities.

Debr 12.88% 3.858% 232% Increase i ratio 15

Equity due to decrease in

Ratio sharcholder’s
equity.

Operating 6% -35341% -117% Decrease 1s due to

Profut Decrease i

Margin (%) SArTHngS before
taxes.
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Net Profit 6% -33.41% -117% Decrease 15 due 1o

Margin Decrease in net
profits.

Debr 2.60% -36.60% -105% Decrease 15 due to

Service Decrease i nst

Coverage profits.

Ratio

Betum on 0.34% 2.17% ~113% Decrease 15 due 10

Equity Decrease m net

(ROE) profits.

Net OB Z2% 8.02% 2% Increase 15 dus 1o

Workmg Increase in sales.

Capital

Turnover

Eatio

Betum on 0.33% -2.20% -115% Decrease 1s due to

Capital Decrease n EBIT

Emploved and Increase n
capital employed.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statement in this Report describing the Companies objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or
predictions may be "forward locking statements” within the meaning of apphecable securities laws and
regulations. Actual results may differ matenally from those etther expressed or implied.

Omn Behalf of the Board of Directors
For M's Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra
{(Managing Director) (Director & Chief Financial Officer)
DIN:00241940 DIN: 00241941

Date: 02.09.2024
Place: New Delhi



CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION

We Subhash Sapra, Managing Director and Neera Sapra, being Chief Financial Officer of Hindustan Auto
Finarnice Limited do hereby confirm and certify that:

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial vear and that
to the best of my knowledge and belief:

a these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. To the best of my knowledge and belief. no transactions entered mto by the listed entity during the vear
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity s code of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintamning internal control for financial reporting and
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control system of the listed entity pertaiming to financial
reporting and have disclosed to the auditor along with the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such mtemal control(s). 1f anv, of which T am aware and the steps I have taken or proposed to
take to rectify these deficiencies.

4 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Commitiee that:

a there were no significant changes in mtemal control over financial reporting during the financial year;
b. there were no sigmificant changes in accounting policies during the financial yvear and that the same have
been dizsclosed in the notes to the financial statements: and

c: there were no instance(s) of significant fraud invelved theremn. if any, of the management or an emplovee
having a siznificant role in the listed entity’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra

(AManaging Director) (Chief Financial Officer)
DIN: 00241940 DIN: 00241941

Date: 30.05.2024
Place: New Delhi
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

1. Subhash Sapra. Managing Threetor of the Company hereby eeriify that all the Directors and Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of the conduct of the company for the

financial year ended on March 31, 2024

For Hindustan Auto Finance Limited,

Sd/-

Subhash Sapra
{(Managing Director)
DIN: 00241940

Date: 30.05.2024
Place: New Delhi
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited (the Company’),
which compnise the Balance Sheet as al 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Crther
Comprehensive lncome), the Cash Flow Stitement and the Statement of Changes in Equty for the year then
ended, and & summary of the significant sceounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our spumion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

financial statements give the information required by the Compamnies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformuty with the accounting panciples generally accepted in India

m_::ludmg Indian Accounting Standards "Ind AS”) specified under secnon 133 of the Act, of the state of

affairs (financial posttion) of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit (financual performance

'sldudmg other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
te.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in pecordance with the Standards on Aoditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards ure fusther described the Auditor’s Responsibilines for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repore. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Insatute of Chartered Accountants of India ('TCAL) together with the
cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical respansibilities 1 accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaued is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the othes information, Other informanon does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Chur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informaton and we do not express any

farm of assurance conclusion theren.

In connection with out audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in domg so, consider whether the other informanon is matenally inconsistent with the financial
staternents or our knowledge obtained n the audit or otherwise appears to be materilly misstated.

he work we have performed on the other information abtained prior to the date of this auditor's
nchade that thece is a material misstatement of this other informauon, we are required 1o report

have nothing to report in this regard.

If, based on t
feport, we 0
that fact. We

48



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directom s responsible for the matters stited in section 134(5) of the Act wqh
respect o the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and far view of the state of affain
(financial posinon), profit (financil pecformance including other comprehensive meome), changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles gene rally accepted in India,
wchding the Tnd AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance o
sdequate accounting records in sccordance with the provisions of the Act for safcguarding, of the assets of
the Company and for preventng and detecting frauds and other irregularities, sclection and apphr.nmn_ af
approprate accounting polioes; making pdgments anel estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementaton and mamtenance of adequate mternal financil controle, that were operating effectively far
ensurmg the accumacy and completeness ol the accounting recards, relevant o the preparaton and
presentation of the financial statements that grve a true and fair view aricl are free From marerial russtatement,
whether due o fraud o crmon

In prepanng the financial statements, management i responsible for asscssing the Company’s ability
continue a8 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o gowng concern and using the going
concern basts of accounting unless management either intends to hquidate the Company or lo cease
operstions, or has no realistic alternative but 1 do 0.

Those Board of Directars are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Starements

Ohur ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whuole are free
from material musstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o 1ssue an auditor’s report that wcludes our
opunion. Reasonable assurance 15 a hugh level of assurance, but 15 not 4 guarantee that an audit conducted m
sccordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a marerial misstatement when it exiss
Misstatemnents can anise from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, ndividully or in the apgregite,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
finarecial starements.

As part of an audir in accordance with Standaeds on Auditing, we exercise professional udgment and
mantain professional skepticism throughout the audit We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of matenal nusstatement of the finanecial statements, whether due to fraud
ar error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence rhat
s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nsk of not detecung & materml
misstaternent tesulting (rom fraud is hugher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may mvolve
collusion, forgery, intentional amissions, musrepresentations, ot the overnde of intermal conrrol

s  Obtam an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in arder to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the cotumstances. Under section 143{3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
explaining ous opImon en whether the compauy has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectivencss of such controls,

o Evaluate the appropratencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the approprialeness of management’s use of the gowng concern basis of accounung and,
based on the audit evidence pbramed, whether a muterinl uncertainty exists related to events or
condinons rhat may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 10 continue 25 a going concern. 1f
we conclude that & maieral uncertanty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
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10,

11

12

13

1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are madequate, o modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease (0 continue as @ going

COnNCCTmL.

*  Evaluate the overll presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, wichuding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transacnions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and uming of the sudit and significant avdit findings, inchuding any significant deficiencies in mtesnal control
that we denufy during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatary Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration 10 its directars
dunng the year in accordance with the provisions of and bmis laid down under section 197 read with

Schedule V1o the Act

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order) issued by the Central
Government of Indis in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annesure A a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 1o the extent apphcable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

1) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belicf were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financials statements;

b} in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those boaks;

¢) the financial staternents dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesud financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

¢) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Dircctors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appomted as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reperting (IFCoFR) of the Compiny as
on 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the finangal statements of the Company for the year

ended on that date and out report as per Annexue B expressed unmodified opinion;

g) with respect to the sther matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in pur opinion and ta the best of our

information and according to the explanations given o us:

the Company has disclosed the impact of pending hingations on its financial position as at 31 March

2024;
any long-term contracts including dervatve contracts for which there were

r did not have
Campers losses as at 31 March 2024,

any material forescenble
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G there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024,

h} The Company maintains its books of accounts manually and does not use accounung software;
henee, the feature for recording an audit trail (edir log) 15 not enabled.

For Lothra & Associates
Chartered Accounrants

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.05.2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the Members of Hindvatan Auto
Finance Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Annexure A

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reparting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking mio consideration the information and explanations given (0 s and
the books of account and other records examined by us i the normal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and beliel, we report that:

(i) (a) The Company has mamntained proper records showing full particulars, including quanniative
details and mituation of property, plant and equipment

(b) The property, plant and equipment of the Company are physically verified by the management
during the vear and no material discrepancies were noticed on such venfication.

(¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the head "Property,
plant and equipment”) are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year ended 31
Mareh, 2024,

(¢} There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

{u} {a} In our opinion, the Company has no inventory.

(b Company has not been sanctioned any working capital lunite from Banks or financial insunon
on the basis of secunty of current assets during the financial year

(1m) {a) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Laability Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii) (a) of the Order ate
not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made investments, provided guarantees or security and granted
loans and advances i the nature of loans o companies, firms, Lirnited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties and hence not commented upon.

() The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause (i){c) to (iif)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence

not commented ppon.

{iv) In our opinion and according 10 the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has neither provided any loans to directors or to any other person in whom the director is
interested or given any guarantee or provided any security in connection with loan under
Seetion 185, nor given any loans and made mvestments under Section 186 of the Act, hence
the provisions of Section 185 and 186 are not applicable to the Company

(v} In our opinion, the Campany hss not accepted any deposits within the meaning o i
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v} of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) As informed to us, the maintenance of Caost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Actin respect of the activities carned
aut by the Company ‘I'herefore, teporting under clause (v1) of the order 15 not applicable to

the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of Hindustan Auto
Finance Limited, on the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

vu)(a) Undisputed statatory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other marerial
statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited to the appropriate
authorities, thouph there has been a slight delay in a few cases. Further, no undisputed
amounts pavable in respect thereol were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

() The dues outstanding in tespect of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

| Nameof | Natureof | Amount | Amount paid [Period to which | Forum where
the statute duen (T lakhs) | under protest | the amount dispute is
(¥ lakhs) relates (AY) pending
Income mx Commasiiones
Act, 1961 Income tax I . 200102 of Incame Tax
(Appeal)

(vi) The Company has not sustendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded i the
books of account, in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) as 1ncome
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause (vii) of the Order s not
applicable to the Company.

{ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or financial
institution or government during the vear. The Company did not have any outstanding
debentures during the yesr.

(b] To the best of our knowledge, the Company has not been declared wilful defaunlter by any
bank or financial insutunon or government or any government suthorty.

(c) In our opinion and sccording to the information and explanatons given to us by the
management, the Company has not taken any term loan,

(d) According to the informaton and explanation to us, no funds raised on shart rerm basis have
been used for long term purposes by the Company.

(¢) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on sccount of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidianes, joint ventures or associate companies,

(f) The Company has not raised any loans dusing the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures Or associale companies.

{x) (2) The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(mcluding debt instruments) and did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause {x)(a) of the Order aze not applicable.

(b) According 1 the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
prefesential alloment or prvate placement of shares or convertible debentures (Fully or partly or

ﬁPU{Hlaﬂ?} dnnng the vear,

(x3) {a) To the best of our knowledge and aceording to the mformation and explanations given to us, No
fraud by the Compaay or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the period covered by our audit,

(b) No report undet sub-section (12) of Secuon 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
Auditors in Farm ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.
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Annexure A o the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the Members of Hindustan Auto
Finance Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us

(i)

(x1)

{xv]

(=)

(xvat)

(xvii)

(i)

(xx)

by the management of the Company, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the vear, hence reporting under clause (xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Iin our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(ai) of

the Order are not apphcable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188
af Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements
et as required by the applicable Ind AS.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has sdequate internal control system commensugate with the size
and the nawre of its business.

() The internal Audit reports of the Company for the period under audit have been considered by

UE,

In our opmion during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
the directors or persons connected with its directors, and hence provisions of Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of Indm
Act, 1934 and is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a) to clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurted eash losses dusing the financial year covered by our audit and the
rmmediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resipnation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
to eeport on clause (xvill) of the Order 15 not applicable to the Company.

According to informanion and explanations given (o us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company and financial ratios, ageng and expected dates of realisaton of financial asscts and
payment of financial habilities, other information accompanying the financial sttements, the
auditors knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we were 1n the opinion that
o material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guaraniee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharped by the company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion, the provistons of the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company and accordingly Clause (xx}{s) and Clause {xx)(b) is not applicable to the Company.

Far l.uﬂil.lﬂ. & hiﬂ{:iﬂlﬂl

Chartered Accountanty
Firm's Registratiop AN @&

CA Shivam Li Accountants | .

Prop.

Membership No:

Chartered

Place: Mew Delhi
Date: 30.05.2024
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Annexure B 10 the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the Members of
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited, on the financial statements for the yrar ended 31 March 2024

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section

3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)

lindustan Auto Finance Luruted (‘the

In conunction with our audit of the financial statements of |
the internal financial controls aver

Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited
financial reporting (TFCoFR) of the Company as at that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controle based on the internal control over finandal reporting coteria established by the Company
considening the essential components of mternal contrl stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financil Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Insttute of Chartesed Accountant of India. These
responsibilines include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate mnternal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensunng the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business,
including adherence o the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accusacy and eompleteness of the accounting records, and the nmely preparanon
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Cur responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the Company's IFColFR based on our audit We conducted
cur audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Instture of Chartered Accountanis
of India TCAT) and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143{100) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of TFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporung (‘the Guidance Note") issued by the ICAL Those Srandards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance shout
whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

Owur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and
their operating effectiveness. Chur audit of IFCoFR includes obtaning an understanding of IFCoFR,
assessing the rsk that a material weakness exasts, and resting and evaluting the design and operanng
effecuvencss of inteenal control bused an the assessed nsk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, includmg the assessment of the nisks of matenial misstatement of the financial staterments,

whether due to frand or eror

We believe thar the audit evidence we have obtained i sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

is a process designed 10 provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 1 accordance with
generally accepted sccounting prnciples. A company's [FCoFR include those policies and procedures that
(1) peramn to the mantenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and farly reflect the

A company's IFCoFR
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Annexure B 1o the Independent Auditor’s Report of even dawe to the Members of
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonahle assurance that
transachons are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Anancial staternents o accordance with
generally sceepted accounting principles, and that receiprs and expenditures of the compary &re being made
only w accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company, and (3} provide
reasonable assurunce regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorsed acqusition, use, Of
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intemnal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitanons of IFCoFR, mncluding the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatetnients due to eror or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the nisk that
the TFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of complance

with the policies or procedures may detenorate.
Opinion

In out opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operiing effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting eriteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nate on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Far Luthra & Associates

Chartered JI i
CEGuntants
CA Shi el )

Place Mew Della
Date: 30052024
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Hindustnn Aute Finanes Limlved
Malanee Sheel

ATl et i § ]
Particulars

Mates

Adat

fn il
a1 March wo®]

Aswrts
Man-rurrriT sseis
Propecty; plent sd egnipment
Clagpital worrk in progress
Caler Tiiningibhe masrts
latangilde saspe under Jovebopries
Finainial asses
i Investmenis
i Lasans
i, (nbwy firmaneis]l anseis
bt s -current issebs
Tutal oo -current nssety
Curreni amsels
Tvemiories
Flenninl nasets
L Invedtmenis
W Trade roceisliles
kit Caeh and caah equivalests
v Bask balaners ather 1han (il ) abong
w. Lowna
wi. (Mher fimancial assels
Carrent tax amsels [ Nel)
Unlsee marmemi el
Tu=al current sssels

Totnl nssrin
Eaguily smdd Habdlities

Fguity

Tigmity whunre capitn]
tber equity

Tolal equity

Lidmbilities
Non-current Llabsilities
Financial lahilites

1. Bormreings

1l. Trade pavabies

1k, teiber fimancial lakdited
Emploves benefi obligatinns
Dieferred rax labilities (Neth
Total nan-current lishilities

Current linbilliies
Fimamcisl liabalides
I, Brrmwines
. Trade biles
(A} Toal ,Ti'u.aw. 1t Miero Exterprieen & Small Exlerprises
(b} Total pusmanding due 1o Creditors sther than Micra
Esterprises & Bmall Enterpeiss
bls Dby Rlnancial labdities
Eploryese henefli obligations
Uther cursent Bebililies
Provistins
Carrent fun liahilitees (Nel)
Tulal eosrrent lishilities

Tutal Habdiities
Total equity and labllitles

g

Summrary of maberinl seconnting palicies and oiher explangsory informution (Noted - 28}

e e panying noles are an integral part of these fancial setements

Tleds b8 the Halareee Shisel iwferred i Lo o report of even dabe

M. Nu : 545739

umis :;_'1 s45 799 BRFACIEYSS
Place: Mew Delhl

[inke ; 30058024
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Hindustan Auto Finnnce Limited

Statement of profit and loss
{ Al amont i B Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Notes =+ March sony 91 March 2023
Iicuime
Kevetine from opemtions 14 1963 15.00
Oiher ineoime 15 6.25 =
Total Income 19.88 15.11
Expnses

Lost of material consurmed i -
Purchase of stock-in-trde I =

Empiloyee henofit exponses 16 7.7 5.67
Firumiee Ceimt . -
Tiepreciation and amortisatlon expense ; -
Crher cxpenses It 1104 g8
Total exprenyes _15.06 30.46
Profit hefore tax 0.z (5:35)
Income tax expense 1}
Current tax =
Current Year = z
Earlirr Years - o,
Dferred lax :- - -
Profit for the vear o.82 (5.a8)

Othier comprehensive ineo mie
e thot wiill nor be reclossfed to profit or loss

Hemessuremepts of post-employment benefii obligations - -
“Ineome i relating to these itema - *

Total (Mber Comprehensive Income for the yeur, net of tax = =

Totml Comprehensive Income for the year u.Hi (5.38)
Earnings per equity share:

Hasic earnings per share a6 DR (=R e ]
[Hluted earnings per shore a6 0.0077 (masa)

Gurmmary ot materizl secounting poelicies und other sxplanotory information (SNote ©-28)
The peonmpanying notes are an integml part of these finensal stdemmts

i s the Statement of Profil and Loss referred (o in our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hindustan Auln Finance Limited

Maee: New Delki
[t - 50,05 202q
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Hindustan Auto Finanee Limited
Statement of cash flows
(Al amount in R Lakh, unles otherwise stated)

As ut As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2033
A, Cash flow from operating acthities
Profit before tax oz (5-35)
Adjustmenis for;
Deprechution and amortisation expense — -
Opernting profit before working capital changes o.82 (5-35)
Change in operating assets and Habilities
Uincresse] in tlher non-current financlal asseis {q00.65) {0.05)
Pecrease in trade receivables 955 1540
| Imcrease) in other curment assets {ob2) (o.06)
[ Duecrease) in other corrent Hahilities om (6.45)
Inerease in other current financial linbilities 24.00 545
Inerease in Current tax Hahilittes (Net) _nag =
Cash generated from vperations (B.10) 8.93
Ineome taves { paid) Retund - {0100 )
Net cash infiow /{outflow) from operatng activities (A) (8.10) B.92
B. Cash flows from investing activitics
Decrease in other non-curTent dssets Ly =
Net cash inflow from investing activities (B) = =
. Cash flows from financing activities
Net cash outflow from financing activities (C) - -
Net ineriease (decrease) in cash and eash equivalents {8.10) 8.2
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financlal vear 14.16 524
Cash and cush eguivalents at end of the year 6.05 1416
Reconciliation of cash und eash equivalent as per the cash flow statement:
Cash and Cash eguivalent as per above comprise the following:
Cash and Cash eguivalent (Note 6) 6.05 1416
Balance as per stutement of cash flows 6.05 14.16

Summary of materlal aceounting policies and other explanatory information (MNote 1- 28)
The secompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements

"This is 1w Cash Flow Statement referred Lo in our report of even date
For Luthra & Associn

Charterisd Actisintan A Hindustan Auto Finance Linyited

(CA Shivam
Partnir

M. No 545739
UDIN: 2454533908

Place: Mew Delhl
Date : 300520024

For and on behalf of the Board of Dinsctors of




Hindiistmi Auto Finanee Limited
Stutemeni of changes in equlty
(AL mmant i s Lok, uniess otherwise stated)

1} Egquity Share Caplinl

As it 1 April 2092
Chariggen i1 equity glinre capital dirding the vear

Notes Amaounts
a50.28

As gt 31 Mareh soay
Charges in equiity share copital during the year

mo.z8

A al 31 Mareh aomy

uﬂ.lﬂ

1) Cthver egpuiny

Balanics as at 1 April soze
Prodit for the period
(her comprehanave income

Total comprehensive income for e year
Transactions with owners In their caparity

¥ WIS
Devidend pakd
Dhvidend distribution tax

Reserves and surplus

Mobies Other Reserves earnings

Total

773

(1o1.71)
(5.36)

(5:36).

Halance as at 31 March zozg

7.78

{1o07.08)

Balance as ut 31 March acag

P'rufit for the period
(kher pomiprehenstve inopme
Towml comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners in thelr copacity

RS WTHOTN:
Duvidend gaid
Dvedend custrisation tix

772

{107.08)

Bsilutiwew ay ul 31 March

b |

{113.85)

{106.26)

Summary of material pooounting policies and ofher explanmbory mformation (Mote 1- 28)
Thie mecisnrpamyng obes ere an integral part of these financsl gstements

This i the Statement of changes in squity referred o in our report of cwen date

T ATy
UDIN: 14545139 R Y

Plicr= SNew Dl
Dhie + 30,085,200

Ter and an behnlf af the Board of Directoes of
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Hindustan Auto Finance Limited \&

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General Information

Hindustat Auto Finance Limited (“the Company™) is incorporated under Companies Act 1956 and the main
source of revenue of the company is lease Income, The Company has followed prudential Norms of RBI fioe
Non-Banking Financial Companics (NRFCs) with regard to asset classification, recognition, investments and
provisioning,

1.1 Materinl scconnting policies

This note provides a list of material sccounting policles adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been conststently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

8]  Bads of preparation
i. Statement of Campilianee

These financial statements are prepared in sccordanee with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under
the historical eost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified).
Thee Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued therecafier.

Accounting policies have been consistently applicd cxcept where a newly issued nccounting standerd s
imitially adopted or & revision to an existing sccounting standard requires a change in the sccounting policy
hitherto in use.

i, Sunstional and presermiation cirrengy

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off 1o the nearest lakh, unless otherwise indicated.

bj Segment reparting
The Company operstes under single reportable operating segment. Accordingly, disclosure relaling o
operating reportuble segment as required under Ind AS 108 are not applicable.

c) Revenue recogaition

& Additional Hire Charges/ Lease charpes uré in the miture of compensation charges and Penal charges are
on recognised basic.

b, Hire purchase Income is apportioned equally over the Hire Period. However, [or cases financed affer 1™
Aptil 1897, income has been computed on the IRR method.

¢, The Prudential Norms prescribed by the RBI regarding the Non-Performing Assets are being followed
by the Company and no income |s recognlzed in respect of Non-performing Assets
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Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

)

h)

Incame Ay

The income tax expense or credit for the perind is the wx puyable o the current period's txable income
based on the applicable income tax rate in India adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and libilities
attributed to temporary differences and to unused tax [osses,

Cutrent Tax

The current income tax charge s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted u
the end of the reparting period. Management perfodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respevt
W situation in which applicable tax regulation is subject 1o interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amount expectad to be pald to the tax suthorities.

Current tan assets and tax liabilities are offser where the entity has o legally enforceable right o offset and
intends either to settic on & net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the Hability simulaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentotion in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liguid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known-amounts of cash and which are subject
T an insignificant risk of chunges in value, and bank overdrafis. Bank overdrafis are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities in the halance sheet,

Stock on Hire

Stock on hire has been valued at cost plus il finance charges as reduced by the installments, which have
matured doring the relevant period.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Finaneial assets and finaneial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
theee is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized mmounts and there is an intention o settle
on & net bosis or realise thee ngser ond settle the linbility simuiteneously. The legally enforceable right must
nat be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course af businass and in the event

of defuult, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

Trade and olher payables

These amounts represent linbilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior o the end of
financial year which wre unpaid, The amounts wre unsecared und ore usually peid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade and othér payahles are presented as current labilities unless payment [s not due within 12
marnths atter the reporting period. They are recognived inbtially ul their fuir value und subsequently measured
1t wmortised cost using the effective interest methad.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditare that is directly attributuble to the seguisition of the items.

Depreciation an fixed assets is provided on swaight-line method ut the rates preseribed under Schedule 11 of
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Ginins or loss arising from de-recognition of assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the nssets and are recognised in the Statément of Profit und Loss when
the asset is derecognised,

Investments and other financial sasels
Initial measurement
At initial recognition, the Company messures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of 2 financinl
nssel nol at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition

of the financial nsset. Trunanction costs of financial assets curied af fair value through profit or loss wre
expensed in profit or loss,

L Classification and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets of the Company ure classified in the following
catepories:

+ Financial assets measured ol amortieed cost;
«  Finuncial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT); and
» Financial assets measurcd at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification of financial assets depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recopnition.

Fimancial assets measured at amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
& The assel is held within & business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cush flows; and

b, Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initisl measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount ar
premium on sequisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amonization is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
profit or oss, This category generally applies o trade and other receivables, bank deposits, security deposits,
investment in Government Securities, bonds, cash and cash equivalents and employee loans etc.

. Financial instruments measured ul fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial instrument shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

2 the objective of the business model is uchieved by both eollecting contraciual cash Mows and selling
finenicial assets; and
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vi.

k)

b, the asset's contractual cash flow represents SPPL,

Financial instruments included within FVTOCI eategory are measured initially as well as a1 cach reporting
period m fair value, Foir value movements are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCT), Currently,
the Company does not have any asset classified under this eategory.

- Financial instruments measured al fair volue through profit and loss

Fair value through profit and loss |s the residual calegory. Any financial instrument which does not meelt the
criteria tor categorization ns ol amortized cost or fale value through other comprehensive income is elassified
at FVTPL. Financial instruments included within FVTPL category are measured initially as well as st each
reporting period ™ falr value, Fair value movements are recorded in statemant of profit and loys. The
Company has certain mvestment ez, UTT Balance Fund, ete. classified under this category.

Drerecognition of financial assets

A financtal asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial ssset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
i primurily derecognised onty when:

®  The rights to receive cash flows from the assei have been irnnsferred, or
*  The Company retains the contractual rights o receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes
& contractual obligation to pay the cash flows 1o one or more recipients,

When the Company has transferned an asset, it evalustes whether it has substantially transferred all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial usset. In such cases, the financial asset s derecognized. When the
Company hns not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial nsset, the
financial asset is not derecognised,

When the Company has neither transfierred a financial assel nor retains substuntinlly all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the finuncial asset Is derecognised if the entity has not retained control of
the financial asset. When the entity retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued 10 be
recognized o the extent of continuing invalvement in the asset,

Earaings per Share

1. Busic earmings per shire

Basic eornings per share is calculated by dividing:
*  The profit siributable to owners of the Company
* by the weighted uvernge number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

. Diluted earnings per share

Far the purpase of calculuting diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period arributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted nverage number of shares outstanding during the period s
adjusted fior the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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.1

3

a)

Srovisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when there is o present legal or statutory obligation or constructive obligation as a
result of past events and where it is probable that there will be outflow of resources to settle the obligation
and when a reliable estimte of the amount of the abligation can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's hest estimate of the expenditure required Lo
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used 1o determine the present
value is & pre-tax rate that reflects current market ussessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
10 the liability. The increase in the provision due 10 the pussage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent linbilities are recognized only when there s a possible obligation arising from past events due 1o
OCEUTETCe OF non-Geviurrence of one of more uncertain (Ulure evenis not wholly within the control of the
Compuny or where any present obligation cannot be measured in lerms of future outflow of resources or
where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made, Obligations are assessed on an ongoing hasis and
only those having a largely probable outllow of resources are provided for,

LContingent assets where it is probable that future economiv benefits will flow 1o the Company are not
recognised but disclosed in the financial statcments. However, when the realisation of income is virually
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, bul it is recognised &s an assct.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified oy equity

Incremental costs directly atributable 1o the jssue oFnew shares or options are shown in equity us a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use 3¢ sccounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise Judgement in spplying the company's
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, ineluding expectations of future events that may have 1 financial impact on the compuny and that are
believed 1o be repsonable under the circumstances.

New standards that are not yet effective und have not been carly sdapred:

All the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) til] the financial statements are suthorized have been
cunsidered in preparing these financial statements,

Standurds issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or smendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issved from tme to time. For the year ended 31 March
2024, MCA has not notified any new standard and amendment to the existing standards applicable to the

Company.
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Hitrudusimn Ao Finance Limiied

Mt haininee sheeet
(AN mnprnt i R, Lalch, uniees otherwise statid )

Particulars

As ml At
g1 March soid 51 March soey

4 UHher nonscinrrent Anamols] seseis
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(i

i)

(i) Detuils of shurcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

fiv)

Eguity share caplital
Authoriscd equity share eapital
Number of Equity share
ahares capital (par value) (Rs.
(in Lakhs) Lakha)
As ol 1 April aozz 6000 fn0.00
Asat 31 March ana23 0, 0F 600,00
Azt 31 March 2004 60,00 600.00
Movements in equity share eapital: lssued and fully subscribod
Number of Equity share
shares cupital (par value) (Ra.
(in Lakhs) Lakhs)
As ot | April 2023 a5.03 150,28
Adldition /(deletion) during the period . =
As at 31 March 2023 45.0% 3s0.28
Additicn/ (reletion) during the period - '
As ml 31 March 2024 3503 aso.28

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The company hes one class of squity shares having o par value of Rs.0 esch. Each shamcholder is eligible for
one vole per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligihle to receive the
romaining assets of the company sfter distribution of all preferential smounts. The distribution will be in

proportion to the namber of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As ut 31 Murch zo2g As at 1 March 2023
Number of Number of
shares % holding shares | % holding
| (inm Lakhs) (in Lakhs)
Suhbhash Sapra 4.5 12.H6% 4.51  12B6%
Kiera Sapra .37 g.61% 3.37 G.61%
B0 Invisstrents Private Limited 2,39 6.81% 230 6.81%
10.26 20.20% 10.26  29.29%
Change in Share Capital for the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the
Balanee Sheet i3 preparcd
Particulars 2023-24 2O2D-27 2023-23 2ORO-21 2019-20

Ageregate number and class of shares allatted
as fully paid -up pursusnt to contract(s) ¥ #
without payment being recerved in cash

Aggregate number snd elnss of shares allotted
as frlly patd-up by way of bonus shares [Eguity - -
Shures}

Aggregate number and cluss of shares bought

hack
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1) Detalls nf!‘hhhl'lltl.lnn of Promnoters

Sharsholding at the end of| Shurcholding at the end
) March 31, roag of March 31, 2023 % Change
Name of Promoters Numberof | Noftotal | Numberaf | % oftolal | during the
ahares Shares of shapes Shares of year
mn Lakka} m I Company
Dhnm Sapm t.44 | 1 .44 124
Divva D Li7 117 :-.u]_
Neors Sapim __3azr [T F 5.1
Subhash Sapra 4.5 12B6l 4.5 12.86
|3 Saprm & Sons _o.azr .76 047 .76
Total 9.75 27.Ha 9.75 7,82
Shareholding at the end of| Shareholding st the end
March g1, 2023 of March 31, 2022 % Change
Name of Promoters Numberof | %oftotal | Numberof | %oftotal | duringthe
shares Shares of shares Shares of s
Il lin Lakhs) Company (in Lakhs} | Campany
Dhrav Sapra 044 1. O 124
Doy Oberoy L1y 3 117 335
Nvors Sapra 137 9.61 337 961
Subhash Sapra 4.51 12,86 4.51 1286
Subbuish Sapra & Sons Ej} 0.7 027 .76

Total 9. Ba 9.75 27.82




Hindustan Aute Finance Limited
MNotes to balance sheet
{ All amount in Bs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

o Other Equity
Heserves and surplus
Ag alt As at
31 March 2024 g1 March 2023
Other Reserves 7.73 7.73
Retained Earnings (11:3.85) {114.66)
Total reserves and surplus (106.12) (106.94)
Total other equity {106.12) (106.94)
) Other Reserves
(Opening balance 7.73 7.73
Closing balance 7-73 73
b) Retained Earnings
Upening balance (114.66) (10g.30)
Net profit for the period o.82 (5.36)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly
in retained earnings
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit i =
obligation, net of tax
Closing balsnce (113.85) (114.66)
Notes:
i Nature and purpose of Raserves
Other Reserves
There is no restriction attached to the utilisation of other reserve.
10 Other non-current financial liabilities
Income Tax Demand 0.86 0.86
0.86 0.86
11 Other current financial linbilities
Current maturities of long-term debts = 9.45
Loan from related party 3L45 -
- 31495 9:45
12 Other current liabilities
Advance Heceived from customers 0.00 0.00
Expenses Payable 121 0.50
Eamn 0.50
13 Current tax liabilities (Net)

Provision for Income Tax
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16

18

For the yearended  For the year ended

Particulars 91 March 2024 31 March 2o23
Revenue from operations
Sale of Services 19.63 15.11
13.63 if.11
Other Income
Other income 6.25 x
6.25 =
Employee benefit expense
Salaries and wiges 7.87 5.60
Staff welfare expenses o160 G.08
797 5.67
Other expenses
Director's Remuneration .10 0.10
Bank Charges 0,01 .07
Printing and Stationery 0.10 043
Vehicle Running Expenses 1.B6 -
Entertainment Expenses . .02
Telephone Expenses - 0.04
Rent 0.65 0,85
Travelling & Conveyance 0,68 123
Office Expenses o.28 Q.21
Auditor Remuneration 0.13 050
Legal Charges 5.33 8.59
Electricity Expenses 0.7 -
Insuranee 0.04 0,04
Professions] & Consultancy Charges 054 0.68
Software Purchase 0,04 0.37
Advertisement and Puhlicity 0.60 079
Postage - 0.62
Festival Expenses o.21 0.15
Miscallaneois axpenses 0.30 0.26
11.09 14.78
Income tax expense
Current tox = -
Earller Years - 0.01
Total current tax expense - 0.01
Deferred tax

Duerease (increase] in deferred tex nssels
(Decrease) increase in deferred 1ax liabilities
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)

Total income tax expense
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LAT pmount in Bs. Lakh, unless ctherwise stated)
19 Fnirvalue measurements

Financlal instruments by eategory

An al 31 March 2084 As at 51 March 2023
Amaortised Amartised
FVTPL s FVTPL cout
Financial assels
Cash ol cash equivalents - 6.05 . 14.16
Socurity deposits - 008 - .08
Total financial assets - 613 - 142}

Financial habilities

Total financial liahilities - . E

(1) Fair value hicrarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instroments that are {a)
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financlal
statements. To provide an (ndication about the rellability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified its finuncial
instruments into the three levels preseribed under the sccounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Financinl assets nod linhilities messured ot fair value - recurring fair value measurements

As at 31 March 2024 Mates Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financinl assets

Total financial assets - = = = =

Assets nnd linbilities which are messured amortised cost for which fair values sre disclosed

As st 31 March 2024 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Levels Total
Financial linbilities
Total financial linhilitics - - - -

Financial assets and liabilitics mensured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

Ax ut 31 March 2023 Notes Level 1 Levelz Level 3 Total
Financial assets

Total financlal nssets - = = =

Assets and liabilities which are measured amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

As at 31 March 2023 Notes Levela Level 2 Level 3 Total
Finnncial Liabilities

Totul finnncial linbilities
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Hindustan Auto Finance Limited
MNotes o financial statements
(Al nmount in Bs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

1} The carrving amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other receivables, security
deposits and other current financinl labilities sre considered to be the same as their falr values, due to their short-term nature.

2) For financial assets and lishilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fuir values.

(1i) Valuation technigue used to determine fair value

Specific valuation technbgues used 1o value financial instruments inclade:

- fair value of the mutual funds has been determined on the basis of closing NAV of the respective funds on the closing date.
- the falr value of the borrowings is determined using discounted cash flow analysis,

(i) Fair value of financial assets and linbilities measured at amortised cost

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Carrying  Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount WOt

Financial Liabilities

Total financial labilities - - - =

The fair values for loans, security deposits and investment in government securities were calculated based on cash flows discounted using
a current lending rate. They are clussified us level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy since significunt inputs required to fair value an
instrument are ohservable

The fair vidues of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level
2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy since significant inputs required to fuir value an instrument are ohservable.

During the year, there has been no movement between fulr valug levels from previous year.
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(A amoont in R Lakh, onless othorwise sinted)

&

(A}

(8]

ol

Financial risk management

The company’s activities expose it to market sk, liquidity risk and credit risk,

This note expluins the souress of risk which the entity is exposed 1o and how the entity manages the risk and the impact of bedge accounting in the
lnancial statements

Risk Exposure arising from Mensurement Management
Croadil rosk Trade recelvables and other financial [Aging analy=is Diversification of bank
nssels deposils,  Investments,
credit limits and Bank|
Cunranies
Ugquidits risk Borrewings and other labiites |Rolling  cash  fow| Availability of|
forecasts committed credit lines
and borrowing fmedities
Market rek — iaterest mie Borrowings st variable mies Sensitivity analysis Arrangement with
|borrowers for periodic
reset of interest rate

The Company’s risk management & carried out by a tressury department ander the supervision of Chisf Financial Officer of the Company. The
tredsury department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the company’s operating units. The boand provides written
principles for overall risk munngement, as well as policlas covering specific sress, such os inlerest rale sk, lguidity dsk, ete,

Credit risk
Credit rick arises from trade receivables, investmaents and otber finaneiol assels,

(1} Credit risk management
Credit risk 15 managed on company basis.

(i1} Reconcillation of loss allowance provision — Trade receivables

Loss allowance on 1 April 2oy {o.54)
Changes in loss allowanee =
Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 {0.54)
Chomges im loss allowance >
Liss ullownnee on 31 March 2024 {o.54)

The increase in ose allowance for trade reecivable b moinly sttributable t the higher anount of outstanding balanes of trade receivable at the end of
reporting period partially set-off by U trade receabile recoversd during the period,

Linguidity risk

Frodent Nguidity risk manpgement implios maintalnlng sufficient cash and marketable séeuritios and the mvailabilicy of funding through an adeguate
amigunt of committed credit fcilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company's treasiny
muintuins flexibility in funding through availability under eommitted credit lines, Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s Liguidity
position and cash und cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is genemlly carried out at company level in sccordance with practice
und limits set by the company. In addition, the company’s liquidity management policy imvolves close monitoring of daily liquidity position by
considering dafly cash colleetion wnd level of lguid assets necessary to meet cash outfow obligation, monitoring balanee shee Lieuidity ratics against
imternnd and external regulatony naguinements,

Market risk

(1) Foreign currency risk y
Thee company does not have foreign operation. Further, a1 the reporting date, the company does not have any assets lability denominated in foreign
currency, Therefore, company is not exposed to forelgn currency exchange risk at the reparting date,

(i) Interest rute risk
The company’s dose not have borrowing,




Hindustan Auto Finance Limited
Notes to financial statements
(All amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

21 Capital management

(&) Risk management

The comipany’s objectives when managing capital are to:

- safeguard their ability 1o continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns to shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, and

- maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Company manages the share capital issued and subseribed along with shareholder's fund appearing in the financial
statement as capital of the company. Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply
with certain financial covenants. The company has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period.

There is no change in the objectives, policies and processes for managing capital

(b) Dividends

For the year ended For the year ended
g1 March 2024 §1 March 2023

(i) Equity shares
Final dividend for the vear ended g1 March 2024 of Rs, NIL - =
(31 March 2023 - Rs, NIL) per fully paid share

Dividend Distribution Tax = -

(i) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period '
22 Segment information

(a) Description of segments and principal activities

The company's Board of Directors examines the company’s performance from a product perspective and has identified
single reportable segment, i.e., lease income, of its business. Accordingly, disclosures relating to operating segments under
Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment" is not required. The Company does not have transactions of more than 10% of total
revenue with any single external customer.
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Hindustan Auto Pinaner Limited

Nives ti Minamcial statemenis

LATL s in Re. Lakby, il ol hetwise siaiod)
e Welaved party transsctions

(u} (0} Key Managrement Personoel [KMT)

1 Key managemaon personnel compensation

: Mr, Subhash Sspra. Director
: My, Neora Sapra, [Kmector

For the year ended For the yoar erided

41 March aoeg 31 March sosy
Saibhaxh fapra T 9.
Neers Sapra [P R o.Ro
Rinhabh Agarwal 338 Lb5
4.35 .65

Nowe - Prior vesr ligares ko bosi peatatsd.
(el Transacthons with relaved parties

Thie fallowing transec lone oecvrred wiil related parties:

For the vear ndsd For the vesr endel

3 Mareh sopg 3 March sazy
() Owistmding balerees srising from sales/purchases of goods and services
The following balances ure outstending m the snd of the reporting period in relation to Imnsactions
with related parties:
An ot As ot
— JiMarchaoay  JiMarchanay
As at As al
i Marchapay g Marchaoay

(e} Hecetvable from related partios

i} Terms and conditions

The tramesactions with redated parties are carmied n the rormal eourse of busines,

Contingent Habilities

Assesper Company's case was pending before the CIT{A) Mearut on accontt of impugned tax demand of Rs.1,54.388/- for the AY 2001-
wa which was partly allowed v the extent of Bs.90,798/-, However remaining tax demand of Rs.63.590/- is still not dispoded off &

pending before the ingome tax suthonties
25 Commitmenis

There b na commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period
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Hindustan Auto Finanee Limited
Notes to financial slatements
(AL mmoint in Ra, Lakh, unless otherwise sinted)

2b Earmings per share

() Basic earmnings per share

Aa ot Aas ot
31 March goag 31 March 2023

Basic earnings pes share attributable to the equity bolders of the Compumy 0.0443 (oi531)

(h) Diluted enmings per share
Pituted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company o.0233 (o.1531)

(el Reconcilintions of carnings used in caleuluting earnings per share

Profit attribastable to equity bolders of the company used in caleulating basis earnings per o8z (5.26]
shar

Diiluted earmitgy per share

Profit attriluatable to equity holders of the COMPANY

- usid in caleulating basis earnings per share o8z (5.56)
Add [ Less: - .
Used in caloulsting diluted esrmings per share 0.8z (5.38)

[ﬂwm!dmnpmmbﬂ-nraqﬁtylhmmdulhcdmnmimwin

caleulating basic curnings per share

Waighted average number of equity shares used s the dencminator in ealeulnting basic 3509 4503
CHFTngs per share

Adjustments for calculstion of diluted earnings per share: .00 0,00

Weighted aversge numiber of equity shares and potential squity shares usad ag the 3503 3508
demominator it cabeulating diluted earnings per share




Hindustan Auto Finance Limited
N 1o finaocial statemonts
(AT namierumt (o Bs. Lakh, voless otherwise stated)

&7 Additionsl disclosures

al e following are analytiesl mtios for the year ended 31 March soad and 31 March 2023

Particulurs Numerstor Denominator 3i-Mar-zy | g1-Mar-ag | % Change

Currend foatie Current mssets Current TabiTtes 547 19 68

Dbt — Equity Ratio Total Debt Sharelol der's Equity 12 88% 1LHEN 232%
Dt Servion Civernge itatis Earniings svaidabile for delst servien Dielyt Service % Bk -5, B -1u5%
Heturmoon Bquity (ROE Net Profits after ices Average Sharehioldar's Equity 0.34% A% “i15%
Tradin recebmbles turnaver mmia Revonne from operation Avernge Trade Receivable T7E% Tk A%
Nt wrkdng capital tumoves itk Rrvonue firom operationg Average Working Capital B.za% 8.02% 2%
et profit retio Ned Prafii | Total Income firn% -35.41% 1%
Ficturn o capital smploved (ROCE) Eamitig before interest and tases Capital Emploved 8.a% -2 30% -1L5%

b Mo flids beve bees sdvaneed or loaned er vested (eliher fron berrowed funds or share premiee or gy other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to o o sy
other persanis) or emity(ies), including foreign entities (“Iitecmediories”) with the onderstanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, {fut the Intermediary
shall leswd o imvest in party identified by or on behsl of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiares). The Company has oot recetved any fusd from any party{a) [Fumsding
Farty ) with the uderstanding that the Company shall whether, directly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Funding
Party 1"Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarpmiee, secarity or U ke on behalf of the Ultimats Deneficiaries.

28 The Muusiny of Corporate Affairs {MCA) has preseribed o new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 2(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2004
software

inserted by the Companied (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiting compunies, which uses seeonnting

far maintaining its books of account, shall wse anly

such secotnting software which lus a featune of reeonding audit trsil of gach and every transaction, cresting an edit log of each change made in the books of account
Al with the date when such changes were made and enasring that the sudit teail cannot be disabled. The Company maintaing its books of neeounts in physical form;
therefore, the regquinenent 1o secard an uudit tradl for every transaction does not apgly,

For Luthra &
Clhartered Acvon
FRN somigarN

M. No : 545799
L't}l‘: 14545337

Plave: New el
Digte = 0505 3024

Fnr md unbluh‘nﬂhlmdnfmncmnnf

78



PROXY FORM
Form No. MGT-11

[Pursuant ro section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN L65910DL1980PLCO10617

Name of the Company Hinduostan Auto Finance Limited

Registered Office Cabin No. DA-8, 2nd Floor, Vikas Marg. Shakarpur.
New Delhi. 110092,

Name of the Member(s)

Registered address

E-maill 4

Folio no. Client Id*

DPID

I'We, being the member(s) of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited holding shares hersby
appoint:

1 Name

Address. 0 siscscscscssscssssmesms

Signature or failing him

2 NWame
Address

as mv/our proxy to attend and vote (on poll) for me'us and on my our behalf at the 44% Annual General
Meeting of the Company. to be held on Monday. 30% September. 2024 at 11:00 am. at the registered
office of the Company situated at Cabin No. DA-8, ?nd Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur. New Delhu,
110092 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

=1
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S.No. Brief of Resolutions In favor of | Against the
Resolutions | Resolutions

ORDINARY BUSINESS (ES)

1.| To recerve, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial yvear endad
on 31st March. 2024 together with the reports of the
Auditors™ and Directors” thereon.

To appownt Mrs. Neera Sapra (DIN: 00241941), Director
& CFQ who retires by rotation and being eligible offers

| ]

himself for reappomntment.
3. |To appoint M/s B. B, Chaudhary & Co. as Statutory
Auditors of the Company.
Affix Revenue
Signed this day of 2024 Stamp of Rs. 1/-
Signature of Shareholder Signature of Prﬂn holder
Notes:

(1) This form, in arder to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited
ar theregistered office of the Comparny, not less than 48 hours before the meenng.

(2 For the resolutions, statement setting out material facts, notes and instructions please refer to the
notice of Avmual General Meeting.

(3) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from aitending the meeting i1 person if he so wishes.

(4] In the case gf joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficien, but names of all
the jointholders should be stated,

Please complete all details including details af member(s) and proxyiies) in the above box

beforesubmission.



Form No. MGT-12

[Pursuant to section 109(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21{1)fc) ofthe
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

BALILOTPAPER

44" Annual General Meeting of the members of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited to be held on Monday,
30%™ September. 2024 at 11:00 am_ at registered office of the company situated at Cabin No. DA-8_ 2nd
Floor. Vikas Marg. Shakarpur. New Dellu-110092:-

Name of First Named Sharcholder
{In Block Letters)

Postal Address

Folio Ne /DP ID & Clhient 1D e e
MoaofShaesheld @ =000 Gacsississiussssississiusississis et st siisiis

Class of Sharss

I hereby exercise my vote mn respect of Ordinary/Special Resolutions enumerated below by
recording my assent or dissent to the satd resolution in the following manner:

S.No. Brief of Resolutions In favor of | Against the
Resolutions | Resolutions

ORDINARY BUSINESS (ES)

1.| To recerve. consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Staternents of the Company for the financial year ended
on 31st March. 2024 together with the reports of the
Auditors” and Directors” thereon.

To appomnt Mrs. Neera Sapra (DIN: 00241941), Darector
& CFO who refires by rotation and being eligible offers

_ |himselfforreappointment.

3 |To appomint Mz B. B, Chaudhary & Co. as Statutory

Auditors of the Company.

=

Date:
Place: Signature of Shareholder
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

{To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

44" Annual General Meeting held on Monday, 30 September, 2024 at 11:00 a.m.

Name of the Member
(In Block Letters)

FahoNa /DRPID & Chent I} @ =00 i cosssaicissmes s ccssnione

e L L .

Name of Proxy
(To be filled 1n. if the proxy attends instead of .
the member)

L hereby cerufy that T am a regstered shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of the
Company and hereby record my presence at the 44% Annual General Meeting of the Company
on Monday, 30% September. 2024 at 11:00 am. at registered office of the Company at Cabin
No. DA-8. ?nd Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, New Dellu. 110092

Aember’s Proxy’s Signature
Notze:

1) Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the mesting, since
fiathercopies will not be distributed at the meeting venue.
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GREEN INITIATIVE IN CORPORATE
GOVERNANCEE-COMMUNICATION
REGISTRATION FORM

{In terms of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Folio No. 'DP ID & Client ID E e e T
Name of 1¥ Registerad Holder e S e e e e
MName(s) of Joint Holder(s) T
Regstered Address | msmmemmmmemm e e e e
Email ID (to be registered) o e e e e S A e

I'We shareholder(s) of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited agree to recerve communication from the
Company in electronic mode under relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Please register
my above e-mail in your records for sending communication through mail.

Signature:-

(First Holder)

Date:

*Note: Shareholder(s) are requested ro keep the Company informed as and when there is any
change in the e-mail address.
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